

WOMEN IN BANKING:

THE FIRST YEAR OF EMPLOYMENT EQUITY

by

Phebe-Jane Poole

for

the Canadian Centre for Policy Alternatives and the National Action Committee on the Status of Women

ISBN: 0-88627-982-8

November 1989

WOMEN IN BANKING:

THE FIRST YEAR OF EMPLOYMENT EQUITY

by

Phebe-Jane Poole

for

the Canadian Centre for Policy Alternatives

ISBN: 0-88627-982-8

November 1989

TABLE OF CONTENTS

		PAGE NO.
1.0	INTRODUCTION	1
2.0	EMPLOYMENT EQUITY ACT	4
3.0	OCCUPATIONAL DISTRIBUTION	8
4.0	SALARIES	15
5.0	FULL TIME AND PART TIME EMPLOYMENT	23
6.0	HIRINGS AND TERMINATIONS	27
7.0	PROMOTIONS	30
8.0	COMPARISON OVER TIME	33
9.0	CONCLUSION	35

BIBLIOGRAPHY

APPENDICES

APPENDIX A NATIONAL FULL AND PART TIME EMPLOYEES BY BANK, OCCUPATIONAL CATEGORY AND SEX

APPENDIX B NATIONAL FULL AND PART TIME EMPLOYEES BY BANK, OCCUPATIONAL CATEGORY, OCCUPATIONAL QUARTILE AND SEX

APPENDIX C NATIONAL FULL AND PART TIME EMPLOYEES BY BANK, SALARY CATEGORY, AND SEX

APPENDIX DHIRINGS, TERMINATIONS AND NET EFFECT

APPENDIX E PROMOTIONS IN FULL AND PART TIME EMPLOYMENT

APPENDIX F CALCULATION OF SALARY RANGES

1.0 INTRODUCTION

The position of women in banking has long been indicative of the unequal situation of women in the labour force. In a 1968 study which was prepared for the Royal Commission on the Status of Women, the strikingly inferior place of women in one of the major sectors of the economy was clearly demonstrated.

Almost 90% of the women employed in banks during that period earned less than $$5,000^{1}$ a year, while 72% of men earned more than this amount. Only two women earned more than $$15,000^{2}$ a year. At that time there was only one female senior bank executive, compared to 326 males and only 29 women were branch managers compared to 5,900 men. These statistics were particularly startling because the majority of bank employees (64%) were female.

Partially as a result of the publicity this study received, some banks began to initiate programs to improve their performance regarding women. Over time, there has been some improvement in women's relative position in banks. But, as this study will show, the changes have been relatively minor. Women are still over-represented in the lowest-paid categories and are least likely to be found in senior executive positions, even though they continue to be the majority of the banking labour force. When they are found in management positions, the majority are in the lowest salary categories.

This study relies on the information which banks have been compelled to provide to the federal government as a result of the <u>Employment Equity Act</u> of 1986. This Act requires that crown corporations and all federally regulated employers with at least 100 employees submit annual reports to the Minister of Employment and Immigration giving information on the employment status of their employees. The Act was the government's response to the Royal Commission on Equality in Employment (commonly known as the Abella Report). The intention of the Act is to provide numerical information on the employment of designated target groups, specifically those who have been discriminated against in employment. These groups are women, aboriginal peoples, persons with disabilities and those who because of race or colour are a visible minority in Canada.

A study of the performance of the banking industry is particularly important because this industry represents the majority of women who are covered by the Act: a full 53% of all women employees who are covered by the Act work in the banking industry. While the Act itself requires only that employers report on the employment status of workers, the stated intention of the government was that poor performance, when reported, would be publicly embarrassing and would force employers to improve their practices.

¹Using the consumer price index this salary would be equal to \$13,184 in 1987. However, it must be noted that there is one problem with using the CPI for salary conversions and that is the assumption that wages increased in the same fashion as the CPI.

²Equal to \$39,552 in 1987.

As this study will show, the banks have not substantially improved their performance in the employment of women over the past twenty years. While women now constitute an even larger proportion of the banking labour force than ever before (women are 72.5% of the full-time labour force in banks and 94.4% of the part-time labour force), their salary levels remain substantially lower than those of men and the wage gap between males and females is substantially larger than the national average. In 1987, the average salary for female full-time workers in banks was \$22,368 or 55.9% of the average salary for male full-time workers. The contrast with all workplaces covered by the Act is startling, since women on average earned 70.7% of the wages paid to men. The wage gap between males and females in banking is also considerably larger than the average for the entire nation, since women earn, on average 64.9% of what men do for full-time, full-year work.

This study will examine the major indicators of women's unequal employment in the banking industry. The focus of the study will be the country's six largest banks, since they account for almost 95% of the total employment of banks in the country. These banks are the Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce (CIBC), the Royal Bank of Canada (Royal Bank), the Bank of Nova Scotia, the Bank of Montreal, the Toronto-Dominion Bank, and the Banque Nationale.

The study will begin by giving a brief description of the <u>Employment Equity Act</u> with an explanation of the type of information which can be found in the reports made by employers. It will then describe and analyze the reports of each of the banks with regard to women on issues pertaining to occupational distribution, salaries, promotions, hirings and terminations, and part-time relative to full-time work. It will compare the banks' performance to all employers covered by the Act and to the national average where applicable.

The conclusion will attempt to rank the six banks according to their relative performance regarding women workers. Progress for the female labour force is measured by comparing: the current relative situation of female workers to male workers in the banking industry; the current relative performance of the banks' labour force to the overall employment equity labour force; the current relative performance of the banks' labour force to the Canadian labour force; and finally, comparing the banks' 1987 statistics with the 1968 study. If female workers are in a poorer employment situation than male workers in these four comparisons and if there has been only minor change since the 1968 study, then little progress has been made for females employed in the banking industry.

This study will not determine whether the current legislation has had any effect todate. That can only be calculated with data from future reports. It will require a longer study over time to see whether there is any effect from the publicity the reports have received and from the Canadian Human Rights Commission's reviews now being conducted. However, the present information does tell a lot about the current situation for women in the Canadian banking industry relative to other sectors of the employment equity workforce and the Canadian labour force as a whole.

While some of the information of this study is available from the <u>Employment</u> Equity Act Annual Report to Parliament 1988, the tables at the end of the study have been

compiled by the author and provide specific information which has been essential for the analysis of each bank. It is necessary to examine a breakdown of the data provided in the reports, rather than to accept aggregate numbers, to get an overall picture of the employment situation in the banking industry.

2.0 EMPLOYMENT EQUITY ACT

The purpose of the <u>Employment Equity Act</u> is outlined in Section 2 of the Act which states:

The purpose of this Act is to achieve equality in the work place so that no person shall be denied employment opportunities or benefits for reasons unrelated to ability and, in the fulfilment of that goal, to correct the conditions of disadvantage in employment experienced by women . . . by giving effect to the principle that employment equity means more than treating persons in the same way but also requires special measures and the accommodation of differences.

Eligible employers, i.e. crown corporations and federally regulated employers with 100 or more employees, were required to submit reports to the Minister of Employment and Immigration on or before June 1, 1988 and each following year. The Minister is required to make the reports available to the public and must send a copy to the Canadian Human Rights Commission (CHRC).

The employers' reports included the firm's industrial sector and geographical location, the employment status on the representation of members of designated groups,³ by occupational group and salary ranges and information on those hired, promoted or terminated.

These employers are also required to prepare an annual employment equity plan which contains the goals that the employer intends to achieve in implementing employment equity and the timetable for implementation of these goals. Employers must retain this plan and all records used to prepare their annual report at their principal place of business in Canada for a period of at least three years. They are not required to make this plan public, to submit it to the Minister, nor to implement it.

The CHRC has the authority to initiate an investigation if it has reasonable grounds to believe that systemic discrimination is indicated by the data they receive. As of July 1989, the CHRC had received agreement from all of the six major banks to undergo a voluntary review of their employment policies. Commission negotiators and the individual banks will "review company records, identify any barriers to hiring and promotion of women, persons from visible minorities, persons with a disability and native persons, and then try to develop a plan to eliminate those barriers".⁴ Furthermore, of the six major banks, all but the Banque Nationale are under investigation on complaints filed by the Disabled People for Employment Equity.

³women, aboriginal peoples, persons with disabilities and persons who are, because of their race or colour, in a visible minority in Canada. <u>Employment Equity Act</u>, section 3.

⁴"Bell Canada and CBC challenge complaints", <u>Canadian Human</u> <u>Rights Advocate</u>, July, 1989, pg. 11. Considerable debate on the Act occurred prior to its proclamation. Proponents stated that the legislation forces employers to set down numerically the current situation in their workforce and also to establish numerical goals. This permits accountability and may force employers to explain why targeted problems are not being corrected.

However, a major criticism of the Act is its lack of enforcement mechanisms. The Act merely states that employers are to identify and eliminate those practices which create employment barriers, to put in place positive policies to give designated groups at least proportional representation in their firms at different job levels, and to draft a plan outlining the goals and timetables by which they seek to do this. But the Act does not require that the action plans, with goals and timetables established by the firms, be made available to anyone.

This is not what Judge Rosalie Silberman Abella recommended in the Royal Commission report on Equality in Employment:

Employment equity legislation should have three major components:

a) a requirement that employers implement employment equity;

b) a requirement that employers collect and annually file data, by designated group, on the participation rates, occupational distribution and income levels of employees in their workforce; and

c) an enforcement mechanism. (page 255)

Equality demands enforcement. It is not enough to be able to claim equal rights unless those rights are somehow enforceable. Unenforceable rights are no more satisfactory than unavailable ones. (page 10)

Furthermore, advocacy groups thought that even Judge Abella's recommendations did not go far enough. They wanted quotas and penalties for non-compliance.

Instead of providing mechanisms to ensure compliance through effective enforcement, the Act relies on: an organization's voluntary compliance; an agreement to a voluntary review of the organization's employment policies by the CHRC; a complaint filed by CHRC; or in some cases, a complaint filed by another organization. Therefore, fear of public reaction is the major way pressure can be exerted on employers to become responsive to employment equity goals.

The only part of the Act with any sanctions at all calls for employers to file annual statistical reports on their workforce. Failure to comply with this could result in a \$50,000 fine. This fine could end up being less than the cost of establishing an office of employment equity and certainly a small fraction of what it could cost to implement employment equity.

Nature of Reporting and Definitions in the Banking Sector

The information provided in the employers' reports is categorized by broad levels, such as industrial sector, geographical locations (national, provincial/territorial and eight census metropolitan areas) and employee status (permanent full-time, permanent part-time and temporary). The number of designated group member employees and the number of all employees by broad occupational groups and salary ranges, as well as changes within total workforce (hirings, promotions and terminations) are also noted.

A permanent full-time employee is an employee who works the standard number of hours per pay period and whose duration of employment is indeterminate and without an agreed termination date.

A permanent part-time employee is one who works fewer than the standard number of hours per pay period and whose tenure of employment is indeterminate and without an agreed termination date.

Temporary employees include seasonal employees and are those whose term of employment is fixed by the employer at the time of recruitment. Employment is for a specified period or periods of work time during any 12 weeks or more with the employer during the calendar year. Exceptions are: summer students, casual employees (those who work during fewer than 12 weeks) and agency personnel. Temporary employees are only reported on in detail if they constitute 20% or more of the workforce.

Of the twelve employment equity occupational groups, the main ones in the banking industry are the upper-level managers, middle and other managers (mid-managers), professionals, supervisors and clerical workers. For this study the remaining employment equity categories were grouped into "other" because they represented such a small percentage of all the bank industry's workforce. These were foremen/women, sales workers, service workers, skilled crafts and tradesmen/women, semi-skilled manual workers and other manual workers.

Under the Act's regulations, upper-level managers are the employees holding the most senior positions who are responsible for the corporation's policy and strategic planning and for directing and controlling the functions of the organization. They include the president, chief executive officers, vice-presidents, general managers and divisional heads, etc.

Middle and other managers receive instructions from upper level managers and administer the organization's policy and operations through subordinate managers or supervisors. Examples are managers of finance, personnel, sales, advertising, data processing, marketing, research and development; and organization and methods analysts. Therefore, it is the nature and the scope of the responsibilities that permit the distinction between middle and other managers and upper-level managers. Professionals, as defined in the Act, usually need either university graduation or prolonged formal training and often have to be members of a professional association. They include accountants, auditors, business administrators, comptrollers and financial analysts.

Supervisors and clerical employees are assigned on the basis of the nature of the duties and the type of work performed. Supervisors are non-management first-line coordinators of white-collar (clerical, sales and service) workers. They may, but do not usually perform any of the duties of the employees under their supervision. Examples are: supervisors of clerical personnel (bank tellers, account recorders, bookkeepers, stenographers, typists, receptionists, etc.) and head tellers.

Clerical workers perform clerical work in which the activities are predominantly non-manual. They include bookkeeping and accounting clerks, cashiers and tellers; secretaries, stenographers, typists and clerk-typists, receptionists and information clerks.

Employees within each occupational group are ranked within four quartiles of the salary range for that occupational group. Appendix F "Calculation of Salary Ranges" gives details on how these salary ranges are calculated.

The government provides separate salary summary forms for permanent full-time, permanent part-time and temporary employees. The number of employees whose salary falls within each salary band is recorded for all employees and by designated group.

Furthermore, all employees who are hired, terminated and promoted are recorded by the 12 occupational groups. Terminated includes all those employees who retired, resigned or who have been dismissed, but does not include temporary layoffs. Promoted means any employee who has been permanently moved during a reporting period from one position to another and now is within a higher salary range than that of the previous position and a higher ranking in the business hierarchy. The employer must report the total number of employees promoted, i.e. a count of the number of people who were promoted, as well as the total number of promotions, i.e. the total number of transactions. The latter category will include those employees who were promoted more than once during the year.

An analysis of this information with respect to the banking industry is provided in the following sections.

adaritaret za reantaturit porturi zurentari mangen stipegionene Begeneten en energiene of Severe interprete spirit advertionale di culgale er quarcaturg renesati and rescaper of Severe interprete spirit advertionale dial più Thirritichi, a ja the annua and the culpa of the another dial call of the encoder mode and other remagnets can guarte e er managers

3.0 OCCUPATIONAL DISTRIBUTION

In the banking sector, there is quite extreme occupational segregation by sex. Women are highly concentrated in clerical occupations and men are highly concentrated in managerial and professional occupations.

Women in the banking industry were 12 times more likely to be in clerical jobs than were men. Men were 33 times more likely to be upper-level managers than were women.

In 1987, 69.4% of the female bank employees worked in the clerical workers' group, 12.9% were reported in middle and other managers' occupations, and 8.2% were in the professional occupations.⁵ In comparison, 15.8% of all men were in the clerical workers' group, nearly 20% were in the professional occupations and more than one-half of all men held middle and other managers' positions.⁶

Women in the banking industry had a 2.9% share of upper-level management jobs, 38.3% of middle and other managers' jobs, 54.2% of professional positions and 92% of all clerical positions.⁷

Full-Time Employees

When the full-time labour force is examined by occupation, segregation by sex is apparent at each of the six major banks. However, it does vary at the different banks.

Table 3.1 (Occupational Distribution of Female Full-Time Employees) shows that the Banque Nationale was the worst of the six major banks when occupational segregation by sex for female full-time employees was examined. It had more female full-time employees in clerical (77.9%) and fewer in middle management (6.7%) than the other five banks. The Toronto Dominion was the second worst bank with respect to the clerical occupation (77.6%) and the CIBC was the second worst bank with respect to the middle manager occupation (8.1%).

In contrast, the Bank of Montreal was the best of the six major banks with respect to occupational segregation. It had the highest proportion of the female labour force in middle management (25.9%) and in professional occupations (16.3%) and the lowest proportion in the clerical occupation (50.5%).

'Employment Equity Act Annual Report to Parliament 1988, pg. 33

⁶Annual Report, pg. 33 ⁷Annual Report, pg. 33 Table 3.1 also shows that the majority of male employees at the six major banks were in the middle-level manager and professional occupations. This ranged from a high of 81.7% at the Bank of Montreal to a low of 65.6% at the Toronto Dominion.

Therefore, female full-time employees in the banking industry hold a much smaller proportion of jobs in higher-salaried occupational categories than men and a much larger proportion of the jobs in the lower-salaried occupations. In other words, an examination of each occupation, within the banking industry demonstrates clear demarcations by sex. Management occupations are predominantly male while clerical and supervisory occupations are clearly female.

Table 3.2 shows that female full-time employees constitute over 90.0% of the clerical occupation at each of the six major banks, with very little difference among them. The Banque Nationale has the largest concentration (96.1%), the Bank of Nova Scotia has the second largest concentration (94.1%), and the Toronto Dominion has the lowest (90.1%). The majority of supervisors are women at each of the six major banks. The Royal Bank has the highest percentage of supervisors (95.1%) while the Banque Nationale has the lowest (76.6%) and the CIBC has the second lowest (86.9%).

The professional category was not as highly segregated by sex. However, this varied widely by bank. Female employees constitute 60.6% of this category at the Royal Bank while they constitute only 27.0% at the Bank of Nova Scotia.

The proportion of female full-time employees decreases the higher up the occupational ladder one goes. In the mid-manager occupation females account for a low of 25.5% at the Banque Nationale. The Bank of Montreal is an exception to the other five major banks and has a high of 51.0 % females in this occupation - almost double that of the Banque Nationale.

Women's proportion of jobs within the upper-level management category is extremely small at all of the banks. The Royal Bank has the lowest percentage of female upper-level managers (1.3%) and the Bank of Nova Scotia the highest (3.2%).

Part-Time Employees

Over 96.0% of the female part-time employees in all of the six major banks are in the clerical occupation, as Table 3.3 demonstrates. The remaining female part-time employees are found in mid-level managers, professional, supervisors and other occupation categories to varying degrees. When the male part-time employee occupational distribution is examined, similar patterns result.

The Toronto Dominion has a higher percentage (3.6%) of its female part-time employees in the middle-manager occupation than do the other five banks, and the CIBC and the Banque Nationale have the lowest (0.0%).

However, when the occupations are individually examined by sex, for the part-time labour force, it becomes clear that female part-time employees constitute the majority of all part-time occupations at the six major banks. Table 3.4 shows that the part-time clerical occupation is about 94.0% female at every bank, with no significant variations among the banks. 96.3% of supervisors are female at the CIBC while there are no female part-time supervisors at the Toronto Dominion or the Banque Nationale.

OCCUPATIONAL DISTRIBUTION OF

FEMALE FULL-TIME EMPLOYEES

	Upper Level Mgrs.	Middle Level Mgrs.	Pro- fess- ionals	Super- visors	Clerical	Other	Total
CIBC	0.0	8.1	8.8	11.1	70.4	1.6	100.0
ROYAL BANK	0.0	12.8	10.7	3.2	73.0	0.3	100.0
BANK OF NOVA SCOTIA	0.0	11.1	1.9	14.9	67.5	4.6	100.0
BANK OF MONTREAL	0.0	25.9	. 16.3	6.8	50.5	0.4	99.9
TORONTO DOMINION	0.1	13.8	0.5	7.5	77.6	0.5	100.0
BANQUE NATIONALE	0.0	6.7	8.0	1.4	77.9	5.9	99.9
		MAL	E FULL-TIN	1e employ	EES		
CIBC	2.1	45.9	21.6	5.0	20.1	5.2	99.9
ROYAL BANK	1.8	59.3	20.7	0.5	15.7	2.0	100.0
BANK OF NOVA SCOTIA	2.3	58.4	13.5	4.3	11.3	10.2	100.0
BANK OF MONTREAL	2.5	55.6	26.1	1.6	10.7	3.4	99.9
TORONTO DOMINION	7.0	61.8	3.8	2.9	23.6	0.9	100.0
BANQUE NATIONALE	1.7	55.9	23.6	1.2	9.0	. 8.6	100.0

OCCUPATIONS BY SEX FOR FULL-TIME WORKFORCE

	Upper Level Mgrs.	Middle Level Mgrs.	Pro- fess- ionals	Super- visors	Clerical	Other
19152						
CIBC						
Female Male	3.1 96.9	34.6 65.4	55.0 45.0	86.9 13.1	91.3 8.7	47.5 52.5
ROYAL BAN	K					
Female Male	1.3 98.7	39.1 60.9	60.6 39.4	95.1 4.9	93.3 6.7	33.6 66.4
BANK OF N	OVA SCOTIA					
Female Male	3.2 96.8	33.7 66.3	27.0 73.0	90.2 9.8	94.1 5.9	54.4 45.6
BANK OF M	IONTREAL					
Female Male	2.4 97.6	51.0 49.0	58.3 41.7	90.6 9.4	91.3 8.7	22.7 77.3
TORONTO I	OOMINION					
Female Male	2.7 97.3	38.4 6.16	27.8 72.2	87.6 12.4	90.2 9.8	62.8 37.2
BANOUE N	ATIONALE					
Female Male	2.1 97.9	25.5 74.5	49.0 51.0	76.6 23.4	96.1 3.9	66.2 33.8

OCCUPATIONAL DISTRIBUTION OF

FEMALE PART-TIME EMPLOYEES

	Upper Level Mgrs.	Midd Lev Mg	ile vel rs.	ic	Pro- fess- onals	Suvi	per-	Cle	erical	Other	Total
CIBC	0.0	(0.0		1.4		1.3		96.9	0.3	99.9
ROYAL BANK	0.0	().4		1.1		0.5		97.8	0.3	100.1
BANK OF NOVA SCOTIA	0.0	().1		0.1		1.1		98.3	0.3	99.9
BANK OF MONTREAL	0.0	2	2.3	1.04 1.93	1.1		0.4		96.0	0.3	100.1
TORONTO DOMINION	0.0	3	3.6		0.0		0.0		96.4	0.0	100.0
BANQUE NATIONALE	0.0	().0		0.1		0.0		98.5	1.4	100.0
			MA	LE PA	RT-TI	ME EN	APLO	YEES			
CIBC	0.0	().3		0.6		0.8		97.5	0.8	100.0
ROYAL BANK	0.0	().0		0.6		1.2		97.7	0.6	100.1
BANK OF NOVA SCOTIA	0.0	().9		0.0		1.4		97.2	0.5	100.0
BANK OF MONTREAL	0.0	3	3.5		8.9		0.3		83.5	3.8	100.0
TORONTO DOMINION	0.0	6	6.8		0.0		0.0		93.2	0.0	100.0
BANQUE NATIONALE	0.0	().0		0.0		0.0		84.4	. 15.6	100.0

OCCUPATIONS BY SEX FOR PART-TIME WORKFORCE

	Upper Level Mgrs.	Middle Level Mgrs.	Pro- fess- ionals	Super- visors	Clerical	Other
CIBC						
Female Male	0.0 0.0	66.7 33.3	97.6 2.4	96.3 3.8	94.0 6.0	85.7 14.3
ROYAL BANK						
Female Male	0.0 0.0	100.0 0.0	97.8 2.2	90.5 9.5	95.9 4.1	91.7 8.3
BANK OF NOV	VA SCOTIA					
Female Male	0.0 0.0	71.4 28.6	100.0 0.0	94.0 6.0	95.1 4.9	92.3 7.7
BANK OF MO	NTREAL					
Female Male	0.0 0.0	90.7 9.3	64.9 35.1	95.5 4.5	94.6 5.4	53.3 46.7
TORONTO DO	MINION					
Female Male	0.0 0.0	89.0 11.0	0.0 0.0	0.0 0.0	94.0 6.0	0.0 0.0
BANQUE NAT	TIONALE					
Female Male	0.0 0.0	0.0 0.0	100.0 0.0	0.0 0.0	94.8 5.2	58.7 41.3

4.0 SALARIES

Full-Time Employees

The average salary for women who worked full time in the banking industry was \$22,368 or 55.9% of the average of men working full time.⁸ This was the largest wage gap between men and women in any industrial sector in the employment equity workforce. Probably this is partially explained by the fact that men are concentrated in upper-level management and professional occupations which pay high salaries. Also, the highest average full-time salary in the employment equity workforce was paid to men in the banking sector.⁹

The performance of the banks is considerably worse than that of other employers who are covered by the employment equity legislation with respect to sex discrimination for full-time wages. The average salary for the female full-time workforce covered by the employment equity legislation was \$24,675, or 70.7% of the average salary of men who worked full time.¹⁰

Women who worked full time in the employment equity workforce, including those in the banking sector, earned more than women in the Canadian labour force, i.e. women's full-time average salary was \$2,900 or 13.5% more than that of women in the Canadian labour force.¹¹

In the banking industry 83.4% of the women who worked full-time and 25.8% of the men who worked full-time earned less than \$27,500. In addition, 75.9% of the women who work full time earned less than \$25,000 compared with 20.4% of the men who worked full time.¹² In comparison, over 58% of the women who worked full time in the employment equity work force earned less than \$25,000 compared to 15.8% of the men who worked full time.¹³

Furthermore, in the banking industry 3.0% of the female full-time employees and 44.9% of male full-time employees earned more than \$40,000.¹⁴ While 24.1% of the men

*Annual Report, pg. 31
*Annual Report, pg. 31
*Annual Report, pg. 30
**Annual Report, pg. 30
**Annual Report, Calculated from Table 6.4
**Annual Report, pg. 31
**Annual Report, Table 6.4

who worked full time in the employment equity work force earned more than \$40,000, only 5.0% of the women who worked full time earned that much.¹⁵

Table 4.1 demonstrates that, of all six major banks, the Banque Nationale has the highest proportion (83.3%) of the female full-time employees earning less than \$25,000. Furthermore, it has the lowest percentage of female full-time employees earning more than \$40,000 (1.3%). The CIBC has the second highest proportion (79.8%) earning less than \$25,000 and the second lowest proportion (2.1%) earning more than \$40,000.

In comparison, the Bank of Montreal has the lowest percentage earning less than \$25,000 (63.9%) and the Toronto Dominion has the highest percentage earning more than \$40,000 (4.7%)

However, no banks perform particularly well as far as salaries are concerned, with most women employees concentrated at the low end of the salary ranges. At the six major banks, 89.5% at the Banque Nationale to 79.4% at the Bank of Montreal of the female full time employees earned less than \$27,500.

Table 4.1 also demonstrates that the Toronto Dominion Bank has the highest proportion of male full-time employees earning more than \$40,000 (49.8%) and the Banque Nationale had the lowest (40.5%). The Bank of Nova Scotia has the smallest proportion earning less than \$25,000 (14.6%) and the CIBC had the largest (22.8%) among the other five banks.

Table 4.2 shows that the majority of female full-time employees are found in the lowest two salary quartiles in every occupation at every bank. Even the clerical occupation which is predominately female has over 93.0% of its female employees in the lowest quartiles in all six major banks.

At all of the six major banks, 100% of the female upper level managers are found in the lowest two salary quartiles.

At five of the six major banks over 99.0% of the females in the middle level manager category are found in the two lowest paid quartiles. At the Toronto Dominion Bank 92.1% are found there.

With respect to the professional category, the CIBC and the Bank of Montreal are the worst of the six major banks with 100% of their female employees in the lowest two quartiles. While the Toronto Dominion is the best with 79.4% in the lowest two salary quartiles.

In the supervisor category the Bank of Nova Scotia is the worst of the six major banks and has 99.2% of their female full-time employees in the lowest two salary quartiles compared with 74.1% at the Banque Nationale and 77.6% at the Toronto Dominion.

¹⁵Annual Report, pg. 31

However, Table 4.2 also demonstrates that in a great majority of cases, male employees are also found in the two lowest salary quartiles. In fact, in one case - at the Toronto Dominion - there are more male supervisors than female supervisors in these salary quartiles - 82.0% and 77.6% respectively.

However, Table 4.3 demonstrates that, if the lowest salary quartile is examined at each of the six major banks, there are proportionally more female full-time employees than male full-time employees in this salary quartile. But there are also four situations where males are found in larger proportion than females.

Appendix B, Table B-3.1 to Table B-3.6 show the salary ranges for each quartile by occupational category for the six major banks. As noted in Appendix B, these salary ranges are estimates only.

If the clerical occupation is examined, the salaries range from a low of \$10,000 at the CIBC to a high of \$31,250 at the Bank of Nova Scotia (Table 4.4). Table 4.4 shows that a large percentage of the females in the clerical occupation are in the lower two salary quartiles at all six major banks, i.e. at least 93.5% and over half of the total female labour force works in this occupation at the six major banks. For example, at the Banque Nationale, 77.9% of the female employees work in the clerical occupation. Of these employees 98.2% earn between \$12,500 and \$26,250. In other words, 76.5% of the female full-time employees at the Banque Nationale are in the clerical occupation and earn less than \$26,250.

In contrast, 50.5% of the female full-time workers at the Bank of Montreal are in the clerical occupation and 93.5% of these earn between \$12,500 and \$23,750; i.e. 47.3% of the female full-time employees at the Bank of Montreal are in the clerical occupation and earn less than \$23,750.

The figures are significantly different when the supervisory category is examined. While almost three-quarters of all the female employees in this category are found in the lower two salary quartiles, this occupation accounts for a much smaller percentage of the female full-time labour force. For example, while 74.1% of the females in the supervisory category at the Banque Nationale are in the lower two salary quartiles, this accounts for only 1.0% of the female full-time labour force and earn less than \$30,000. In contrast, 99.1% of the female full-time supervisors are found in the lower two salary quartiles and this accounts for 14.9% of the female full-time labour force at the Bank of Nova Scotia. In other words, 14.8% of the Bank of Nova Scotia female full-time employees are supervisors and earn less than \$35,000.

Part Time Employees

Table 4.1 also demonstrates that female part-time employees receive the highest salaries at the Bank of Nova Scotia, i.e. 12.8% receive less than \$15,000 while none earn less than \$12,500.

On the other hand, at the Royal Bank 97.8% of its female part-time employees receive less than \$15,000. Therefore, only a small proportion of the female part-time employees (2.3%) earn more than \$15,000. Contrary to full-time statistics, comparable salary figures are paid to the male part-time labour force at the six major banks - see Table 4.1.

anda on ana ita namon annan anen are proportanimity indue teama tandame en anyo rees i nelo fall-tirre employees in tiris selary quardle. Eus diene are alto fear situations wi arties are found in larger proportion tirsa femaler.

occupational category for the six major banks. Its nored in Appendix B, these salary

the CEBC to a high of \$31.216 at the Bant of Nova Scotla (Table L41. Table 4.4 theorem the CEBC to a high of \$31.216 at the Bant of Nova Scotla (Table 4.4). Table 4.4 theorem quantist at all nex to per latence in at least 50.59 and over hart of the town providur lates works in this completion at the set of 59 and over hart of the town providur Nationals. (7.290 of the female anteloyed, both 50.000 in the class for families supplying as 97.25 cam between \$12.200 and \$20.000 in the class for the female families are played at the female anteloyed. School in the class of the total families of the completion of the female attention of the the total families is played at 7.290 of the female attention of \$20.000 in the total output of the file fail-thic employeds of the Banque Mannale for the female families of the total attention.

tion design and and shift of the famile following working or the Bark of Monteal and In Mondesign anappaion and shift of family ears harver hill filly and 1531,130, ed. 47,474 of his families full-arrow usplevest it are Surk of Monteal are to the nervoir contractant and the families that the fill. File

i nyani e	Femal Femal	es as a Percent e Full-Time En Yearly Salary	age of nployees	Females Female Employees		
	<22,500	<25,000	>40,000	<12,500	<15,000	
CIBC	72.5	79.8	2.1	83.8	96.5	
ROYAL BANK	66.5	76.1	2.6	93.2	97.8	
BANK OF NOVA SCOTIA	66.7	77.2	2.6	0.0	12.8	
BANK OF MONTREAL	53.3	63.9	3.8	64.3	85.3	
TORONTO DOMINION	61.8	73.7	4.7	77.2	90.5	
BANQUE NATIONALE	73.1	83.3	1.3	90.0	95.4	
No. Car	Male Male	es as a Percenta Full-Time Em Yearly Salary	ige of ployees	Males as Male H Employees	a % of Part-Time Yrly Salary	
	<22,500	<25,000	>40,000	<12,500	<15,000	
CIBC	18.7	22.8	41.0	84.6	92.3	
ROYAL BANK	17.0	22.3	44.5	93.6	98.3	
BANK OF NOVA SCOTIA	10.0	14.6	49.5	0.0	22.6	
BANK OF MONTREAL	12.3	17.8	46.7	66.7	85.4	
TORONTO DOMINION	16.2	21.1	49.8	78.0	87.6	
BANQUE NATIONALE	11.3	17.2	40.5	87.7	96.7	

TABLE 4.2

OCCUPATIONAL SEGREGATION BY SALARY QUARTILE FOR FEMALE FULL-TIME EMPLOYEES

	Salary	Upper	Middle	Profess-	Super-		
	Quartile	Mgrs.	Mgrs.	ionals	visors	Clerical	Other
CIBC	3 & 4 1 & 2	0.0 100.0	0.1	0.0	13.7 86.3	4.9 95.1	8.1 91.8
ROYAL	3 & 4	0.0	0.1	0.1	19.0	4.7	8.0
BANK	1 & 2	100.0	99.9	99.9	81.1	95.3	91.9
NOVA	3 & 4	0.0	0.9	4.6	0.7	0.8	4.4
SCOTIA	1 & 2	100.0	99.1	95.4	99.2	99.2	95.6
BANK OF MONTREAL	3 & 4	0.0	1.0 99.0	0.0 100.0	11.5 88.4	6.5 93.5	16.9 83.1
TORONTO	3 & 4	0.0	7.8	20.6	22.3	5.2	11.3
DOMINION	1 & 2	100.0	92.1	79.4	77.6	94.8	88.8
BANQUE	3 & 4	0.0	0.2	0.2	25.9	1.9	0.2
NATIONALI	E 1 & 2	100.0	99.8	99.8	74.1	98.2	99.8
		FOR	MALE FUI	LL-TIME EM	PLOYEES		
CIBC	3 & 4	0.6	2.8	0.5	29.0	24.2	14.4
	1 & 2	99.4	97.2	99.5	73.1	75.8	75.6
ROYAL	3 & 4	4.6	5.3	2.6	25.6	5.3	48.2
BANK	1 & 2	95.5	95.7	97.4	74.4	94.7	51.7
NOVA	3 & 4	1.6	8.2	8.6	8.2	6.8	25.7
SCOTIA	1 & 2	98.3	91.7	91.4	91.9	93.1	74.3
BANK OF	3 & 4	1.8	15.2	0.3	53.4	6.7	39.3
MONTREAI	_ 1 & 2	98.2	84.8	99.7	36.6	93.3	40.6
TORONTO	3 & 4	5.1	36.1	33.9	18.0	9.5	23.8
DOMINION	1 & 2	94.8	63.9	66.1	82.0	90.4	76.2
BANQUE	3 & 4	4.3	0.4	1.0	45.4	5.7	21.8
NATIONAL	E 1 & 2	95.6	99.7	99.1	54.5	94.3	78.2

TABLE 4.3

SALARY QUARTILE ONE FOR FEMALE AND MALE FULL-TIME EMPLOYEES

	Sex	Upper Mgrs.	Middle Mgrs.	Profess- ionals	Super- visors	Clerical	Other
CIBC	Female	100.0	91.8	98.7	39.8	59.5	47.9
	Male	96.2	51.9	89.0	39.2	41.5	21.1
ROYAL	Female	100.0	91.6	95.7	27.1	48.7	47.1
BANK	Male	75.2	50.6	74.9	30.2	59.2	14.5
NOVA	Female	100.0	88.5	66.8	75.9	83.8	58.1
SCOTIA	Male	97.5	43.6	42.3	58.1	70.3	30.7
BANK OF	Female	100.0	87.3	99.5	39.2	30.6	46.2
MONTREAL	Male	94.0	31.7	95.1	7.8	41.7	33.5
TORONTO	Female	100.0	53.4	14.7	14.2	50.2	46.5
DOMINION	Male	82.7	25.4	4.5	19.4	40.1	11.9
BANOUE	Female	100.0	97 5	97.9	22.2	64.9	88.2
NATIONAL	E Male	91.3	82.9	90.5	12.1	54.5	48.3

10114月13300 月0日1月1日 日

21

	SU. % c	PERVIS of Full-	SORY	OCCUPATI	IONS CLERICAL OCCUPATION Salary Ouartiles 1 and 2		
	Time Emp	Female	% of Time	Full- Female		% of Full- Time Female	
	III Occi	ipation	Super	VISOTS	Salary Ranges	Employees	
CIBC		70.4	192.14	95.1	10,000 - 25,000	66.9	
ROYAL							
BANK		73.0		95.3	12,500 - 26,250	69.6	
BANK OF							
NOVA SCOT	IA	67.5		99.2	12,500 - 31,250	67.0	
BANK OF					100.00 to 100.0		
MONTREAL		50.5		93.5	12,500 - 23,750	47.3	
TORONTO							
DOMINION		77.6		94.8	12,500 - 26,250	73.5	
BANOUE -							
NATIONALE	151	77.9		98.2	12,500 - 26,250	76.5	

TABLE 4.4 OCCUPATIONAL AND WAGE SEGREGATION FOR CLERICAL AND SUPERVISORY OCCUPATIONS OF EDUCAL OCCUPATION

SUPERVISOR OCCUPATION

	% of Full-		Salary Quartiles 1 and 2	2
Т	ime Female	% of Full-		% of Full-
in	Employees	Time Female		Time Female
111	Occupation	Supervisors	Salary Ranges	Employees
CIBC	11.1	86.3	15,000 - 30,000	9.6
ROYAL				
BANK	3.2	81.1	15,000 - 27,500	2.6
BANK OF				
NOVA SCOTIA	14.9	99.2	15,000 - 35,000	1/1 8
	. 1.7	· · · · · ·	13,000 - 55,000	14.0
BANK OF				
MONTREAL	6.8	88.4	15,000 - 30,000	6.0
TORONTO				
DOMINION	7.5	77.7	17,500 - 28,750	5.8
DANOT				
BANQUE	1.4	74.1	20.000 20.000	1.0
MATIONALE	1.4	/4.1	20,000 - 30,000	1.0

5.0 FULL-TIME AND PART-TIME EMPLOYMENT

The banking industry employs a greater proportion of women, in full- and part-time positions, than other industries covered by the Employment Equity Act. Women held 72.5% of all the full-time jobs and 94.4% of all the part-time jobs in the banking industry while they held 37.7% of all full-time jobs and 74.6% of the part-time jobs in the employment equity workforce.¹⁶

Table 5.1 shows that women constitute a larger percentage of full-time employees at the CIBC (74.9%) and a larger percentage of part-time employees at the Royal Bank (95.9%) than at any of the other six major banks. Similarly, they make up a smaller percentage of full-time employees at the Bank of Montreal - 69.1% - and a smaller percentage of part-time employees at the Bank of Montreal and the Toronto Dominion (both have 93.8%).

However, Table 5.2 demonstrates that the Bank of Montreal workforce has double the percentage (22.2%) of part-time employees than does the Royal Bank (11.0%).

In the banking industry, 79.7% of the women were in full-time jobs and 19.9% were in part-time employment.¹⁷ Similarly, 81.8% (197,656) of the women in the employment equity workforce were in permanent full-time jobs and 17.2% (41,557) were in part-time employment.¹⁸

Table 5.3 demonstrates that the variation at the six major banks ranged from a high of 86.3% of the female workforce holding full-time jobs at the Royal Bank to a low of 72.2% at the Bank of Montreal. It also shows that, in contrast, over 94.0% of the male workforce is employed full time at each of the six major banks.

¹⁸Annual Report, pg. 28

^{&#}x27;Annual Report, pg. 28

[&]quot;Annual Report, Calculated from Table 1, pg. 30

TABLE 5.1

	FULL-TIME		PAI	RT-TIME
	MALE	FEMALE	MALE	FEMALE
CIBC	25.1	74.9	5.9	94.1
ROYAL BANK	25.2	74.8	4.1	95.9
BANK OF NOVA SCOTIA	27.3	72.7	4.9	95.1
BANK OF MONTREAL	30.9	69.1	6.2	93.8
TORONTO DOMINION	26.3	73.7	6.2	93.8
BANQUE NATIONALE	26.1	73.9	6.0	94.0

FULL-TIME AND PART-TIME EMPLOYEES BY SEX

TABLE 5.2

PART-TIME WORKFORCE AS A PERCENTAGE OF

TOTAL LABOUR FORCE

CIBC		16.9%
ROYAL BANK		11.0%
BANK OF NOVA SCOTIA		18.9%
BANK OF MONTREAL		22.2%
TORONTO DOMINION		18.4%
BANQUE NATIONALE	, ,	16.4%

TABLE 5.3

PERCENTAGE OF LABOUR FORCE WORKING

FULL-TIME BY SEX

		FEMALE	MALE	
CIBC		79.7%	95.4	
ROYAL BANK		86.3%	98.0	
			ROAG ANUNI IV AN	
BANK OF NOVA SCOTIA		76.6%	96.0	
BANK OF MONTREAL		72.2%	94.6	
TORONTO DOMINION BAN	١K	77.6%	95.0	
BANQUE NATIONALE		80.0%	95.7	

6.0 HIRINGS AND TERMINATIONS¹⁹

The shift in employment from full time to part time is striking in the banking industry. This shift is most noticeable in occupations where women predominate. For example, the clerical occupation makes up 96.8% of part-time employment in the banking sector.²⁰

"The banking sector had the largest single impact on the net effect for women; out of a loss of 2,208 full-time jobs, 2,106 or 95.4% had been held by women. Of these job losses by women, 1,531 (72.7%) were in the clerical workers' category".²¹ Table 6.1 shows that in contrast, 2,318 part-time jobs were created in the banking industry, 82.4% of which were held by women. Therefore, it appears that the banks are decreasing the number of female full-time positions and replacing them with female part-time positions which are likely to be lower salaried and have fewer benefits. The trend is not toward desegregating the workforce or the predominantly female occupations but is in decreasing the female full-time workforce and increasing the female part-time labour force.

These changes affected women in banking much more than in other industries covered by the Act. In the employment equity workforce, women accounted for 27% of full-time job losses.

In the banking industry there was a 1.6% decrease in full-time positions and a 8.5% increase in part-time positions. The Canadian labour force, on the other hand, had growth in full-time employment of 3.1% while that for part-time was less than 1% in 1987.²² In comparison, in the overall employment equity workforce there was a decrease in full-time employment by about 1% while part-time positions increased by 15%.²³

While the Banque Nationale had the highest turnover of female full-time employees of the six major banks, it was the only bank at which the number of women hired for full-time work was greater than the number of full-time female workers who were terminated, and this created 190 female full-time positions. In comparison, the CIBC had a job loss of 1,194 female full-time employees, which accounted for 97.9% of the total jobs lost. This loss was due to the fact that it hired 1,194 female full-time employees, but terminated 2,388 of them.

²⁰Annual Report, pg. 24
²¹Annual Report, pg. 35.
²²Annual Report, pg. 24
²³Annual Report, pg. 24

¹⁹As noted in Section 2, terminated, according to the Employment Equity Regulations, means retired, resigned or dismissed during a reporting period. Therefore, the terminated figures do not indicate only firings or layoffs.

When looking at proportions, the CIBC again fared poorly in a study of female fulltime employees, i.e. they hired the second lowest percentage (62.5%) and had second largest percentage (76.3%) terminated. However, they did hire the lowest percentage of female part-time employees (86.7%) and had the second lowest percentage terminated (91.9%).

While the Toronto Dominion was the only other bank to create full-time positions, they were all filled by male employees. The Toronto Dominion decreased the number of female full-time positions (12) and increased the number of male full-time positions (197). In contrast, the net effect on their part-time employees was an increase of 963 female part time employees and 124 male part-time employees.

At the CIBC, over 1,200 full-time positions were lost (97.9% of which were held by women) and 155 part-time positions were created (33.5% of which were held by women).

At the Royal Bank, the Bank of Nova Scotia and the Bank of Montreal there were decreases in the number of full-time positions and increases in the number of part-time positions - over 80% of which were held by women.

The Toronto Dominion and the Bank Nationale were the only two banks at which the number of full-time positions increased. However, the Toronto Dominion accounted for almost half of all part-time positions created in the banking industry (1,087 out of 2,318) and 88.6% of these were held by women.

It should be noted that these statistics do not give a completely accurate portrayal of job gains and losses. If part-time employees are transferred to full-time positions during the year, or vice versa, they will not be included in the "hired" statistics nor will they be noted in the "terminated" statistics. These transfers could have resulted in job losses or gains and the trend could affect female employees differently from male employees. Further studies are necessary to do a more relevant time flow analysis on the available data.

	HIRI	NGS, TERM	INATIONS AN	ND NET EFF	FECT	,	
	H	irings	Term	Terminations		Net Effect	
	Full	Part	Full	Part	Full	Part	
	Time	Time	Time	Time	Time	Time	
Banking Industry						1 11110	
Total	12,979	8,690	15,187	6 372	(2 208)	2 318	
Men	4.225	950	4 327	543	(102)	407	
Women	8,754	7 740	10,860	5 820	(2 106)	1 011	
W. % of Total	67.4	89 1	71.5	01 5	(2,100)	1.911 02 A	
	07.1	07.1	11.5	91.5	73 .4	04.4	
Canadian Imperial Ban	ik of Comme	rce					
Total	1.909	1 716	3 128	1 561	(1 210)	155	
Men	715	220	740	1,501	(1,219)	103	
Women	1 104	1 197	2 200	1 425	(1 104)	105	
W % of Total	62 5	1,407	2,300	1,455	(1,194)	22 =	
W. JO OL IOLAL	02.5	80.7	10.3	91.9	97.9	33.3	
Roval Bank of Canada					X		
Total	2 374	701	2 059	606	(62.1)	100	
Men	677	76	2,900	000	(034)	100	
Women	1 6/17	710	2000	40	(215)	30	
W % of Total	70.0	/18	2,000	560	(419)	158	
W. 70 OI IOLAI	70.9	90.4	69.8	92.4	66.1	84.0	
Bank of Nova Scotia							
Total	1 204	1 265	1 000	200	153()	2//	
Men	274	1,205	1,820	899	(520)	300	
Women	574	125	498	58	(124)	6/	
W % of Total	920	1,140	1,322	841	(402)	299	
W. 70 01 10tal	/1.1	90.1	72.6	93.5	76.4	81.7	
Bank of Montreal							
Total	1 376	1 772	1 740	1 204	(272)	127	
Men	665	214	1,740	1,200	(372)	+27	
Women	711	214	045	129	20	250	
W % of Total	517	1,309	1,103	1,157	(392)	352	
W. /C OI IOLAI	51.7	87.0	63.1	90.0	105.4	80.5	
Toronto Dominion Bar	nk						
Total	2 577	1 795	2 312	708	195	1 097	
Men	776	1,795	2,312	50	105	1,007	
Women	1 801	1 671	1 912	659	(12)	047	
W % of Total	60.0	1,021	1,015	020	(12)	905	
W. Jo or Total	09.9	90.5	/0.1	92.9	(0.2)	33.0	
Banque Nationale							
Total	1,620	1 788	1 460	1 180	160	108	
Men	298	110	278	05	(20)	15	
Women	1 322	1 179	1 1 2 2	1 095	100	02	
W. % of Total	81.6	01 5	1,154	01.0	110 0	7J Q4	
	01.0	1.5	11.5	71.7	110.0.	00	

TABLE 6.1

7.0 **PROMOTIONS**

In all of the six-major banks, women's promotions tended to be concentrated in the lower level occupational categories and salary quartiles.

Women working full time in the banking sector received 68.3% (25,195) of the promotions while they represented 72.5% of the total workforce.²⁴ In all other sectors, women received a greater proportion of the promotions for full-time positions than their proportion of the sector's workforce.²⁵

More than 57.7% (36,909) of the full-time promotions which occurred in the employment equity workforce were in the banking sector.²⁶ The trend is similar in part-time employment where banking accounted for 69.2% (2,548) of part-time promotions compared.²⁷

In banking, over 40% of full-time promotions went to clerical workers and about 33% went to middle and other managers.²⁸ Almost all part-time promotions in banking were in the clerical workers' category.²⁹

Table 7.1 demonstrates that the Toronto Dominion bank had the highest percentage (72.6%) of women full-time employees as a percentage of total full-time employees to receive promotions, and the CIBC had the lowest (64.7%).

At five of the six major banks, the majority of female full-time promotions occurred in the clerical occupation, while the majority of male full-time promotions occurred in the middle manager category at all six major banks. At the Bank of Montreal 42% of female full-time promotions occurred in the clerical occupation and 32% occurred in the middle manager position.

With respect to part-time positions, the CIBC and the Banque Nationale had the highest percentage of female part-time promotions (14.6%) and the Royal Bank had the lowest (3.3%). However, when part-time employee promotions are proportionally examined by gender, men received proportionally more than women at four of the six major banks. Only at the Royal Bank and the CIBC did women receive proportionally more promotions.

²⁴Annual Report, pg. 35
²⁵Annual Report, pg. 35
²⁶Annual Report, pg. 24
²⁷Annual Report, pg. 24
²⁸Annual Report, pg. 24
²⁹Annual Report, pg. 24

The majority of part-time promotions for both men and women occurred in the clerical occupation at all six major banks.

is sain banks the manning to be the start

	-	Full Time				Part Time		
				W. %				W. %
	Total	Men	Women	Total*	Total	Men	Women	Total*
Bank Industry								00.4
# Promoted	36,909	11,719	25,195	68.3	2,548	169	2,379	93.4
CIBC	7017	2 765	2 077	617	877	38	839	95.7
# Promoted # Promotions	7,852	2,785	5,083	64.7	877	38	839	95.7
Royal Bank						-	100	0(2
# Promoted	7,903	2,489	5,414	68.5	134	5	129	96.3
# Promotions	8,473	2,703	5,770	08.1	158	5	155	20.1
Bank of Nova Sc	otia							
# Promoted	4,362	1,338	3,024	69.3	314	18	296	94.3
# Promotions	4,745	1,464	3,281	69.1	328	18	310	94.5
						÷		
Bank of Montrea	1				500	10	490	02.4
# Promoted	6,579	1,936	4,643	70.6	529	40	489	92.4
# Promodons	7,230	2,079	5,157	/1.5	554		510	
Toronto Dominio	n Bank							
# Promoted	4,385	1,191	3,194	72.8	272	35	237	87.1
# Promotions	4,689	1,283	3,406	72.6	288	38	250	87.8
Banque Nationale	e							
# Promoted	2,458	748	1,710	70.0	300	22	278	92.7
# Promotions	2,666	811	1,855	70.0	302	22	280	92.7

TABLE 7.1 PROMOTIONS IN FULL-TIME AND PART-TIME EMPLOYMENT BY WOMEN AND MEN

*Total Number of Women divided by Total Number of Employees

8.0 COMPARISON OVER TIME

In 1971, The Royal Commission on the Status of Women in Canada published a report prepared by Marianne Bossen entitled "Manpower Utilization in Canadian Chartered Banks." The report's purpose was "to obtain information about career opportunities, current roles and employment trends for female bank employees as compared with male employees in banks and as seen by (mostly male) management".³⁰ In 1968 women made up 65% of the workforce in the Canadian banking industry.

In 1968, job opportunities in banking were expanding for male and female employees, but for the latter it was only occurring in selected occupations. Bank manager and accountant (office manager) jobs in "certain" branches were starting to open up for women. Women were also becoming personal loan officers and were moving into business credit positions. Thus, the report states that women had "conquered prejudice" and management had "to admit that customers accept female bank managers more readily than some bankers accept the idea themselves."³¹ The extent of this "conquering" is questionable when the 1968 report and the employment equity data are compared.

Few women held intermediate, let alone senior management positions in 1968. The majority of women who were promoted were in junior management or equivalent positions (\$5,000 to \$8,000,³² or \$13,184 to \$21,095 in 1987 dollars).

"Although there were 29 female bank managers, women in line management did not compete on an equal footing with men because the banks were hesitant to appoint women to bank manager positions. Many appointments were made in recent years when opening of new branches and scarcity of trained men gave women a chance."³³ Furthermore, aside from lower level jobs in line operations and the support category, the first opportunities for women appeared to be in a few select specialist fields where specialized education is a prerequisite, such as economic research or computer systems, or in banking operations where women are considered especially suitable, such as the personal loan field. The trend in line management was to accept women increasingly in junior and selective intermediate branch positions.³⁴

Over 97 per cent of female bank employees worked in some support capacity or in non-managerial line operation jobs and of these a large percentage were tellers and ledgerkeepers. Only 3 per cent of all women were employed in management and staff specialist occupations, compared with 44 per cent of the male employees.

³⁰Bossen, pg. 1
 ³¹Bossen, pg. 36.
 ³²Bossen, pg. 36.
 ³³Bossen, pg. 17.
 ³⁴Bossen, pg. 18.


When examining the distribution of male and female bank employees by salary, it is apparent that the greatest numbers of males were at higher salary levels, while the greatest number of females were at the lower echelons,³⁵ i.e. below \$5,000 (\$13,184 in 1987 dollars). Ninety per cent of the women earned less than \$5,000 per year while 72.3 per cent of the men earned more than \$5,000.³⁶

In 1968, only two women earned salaries over 15,000 (39,552 in 1987 dollars - the highest salary category) and 15 earned 10,000 - 15,000 (26,368 - 39,552 in 1987 dollars - the second highest category).³⁷

In the teller occupation, all males and females earned less than \$8,000 (\$21,095 in 1987 dollars). However, 80% of the male employees earned between \$4,000 and \$5,999 (\$10,547 - \$15,818 in 1987 dollars); while 97.6% of the female employees earned less than \$4,999 (\$13,182 in 1987 dollars).

Furthermore, females were at the lower levels of each occupational category. "There were no women at all at level 1 of line management, no women at the two highest levels in the line operations specialist group, and none at level 1 in staff operations specialist. Altogether 17 [females] are in senior positions, compared to 5,483 men (nearly 20 per cent of all men)."³⁸

Therefore, although women were starting to move into more senior levels of the banking occupational hierarchy in 1968, they were few and far between; were found in specific sectors of the industry; were mostly in high-level support functions; were in the lower levels within each occupational category, and were heavily concentrated in the lower salary classes.

Parallels with the 1987 employment equity data are clearly apparent. First, the banking industry is predominately female and has become even more so in the last 20 years, i.e., it has gone from 65% female to more than 75%. Second, females were - and still are - mostly located in the lower categories in the occupational hierarchy and predominate in the clerical support occupation. Third, even though the ceiling for salaries has increased from \$43,875+ to \$70,000+ (1987 dollars) it is apparent that the majority of female employees are still found at the lower salary levels of the overall industry and in the lower salary quartiles within each occupational category. Therefore, while there have been some changes in the banking industry in the past 20 years, they have been relatively minor and women are predominantly in the same positions and in the same salary categories. Thus, the need for corrective action and effective legislation is clearly apparent.

³⁵Bossen, pg. 15.
³⁶Bossen, pg. 14.
³⁷Bossen, pg. 15.
³⁸Bossen, pg. 15.

34

9.0 CONCLUSION

The banking industry has not performed well in its treatment of women in general. But there are variations between banks, as the following will show.

In Table 9.1, "Best-Worst Performance of Banks for Women," the six major banks are examined for occupational distribution, salaries, full- and part-time employees, hirings, terminations and promotions. It shows that they all rank differently, i.e. no one bank is the best or the worst in all categories. However, if all these rankings are combined, an overall ranking of the six major banks can be calculated.

If each category is given equal weighting, this calculation shows that the Bank of Montreal has the best performance with respect to its female employees and the Banque Nationale has the worst performance, with the CIBC closely following the Banque Nationale. Each category receives equal weighting since it is very difficult to sort out which is more important at any particular time, and they are apt to change over different periods.

The ranking can be examined by various components. To begin with, a ranking of occupational segregation shows that the Bank of Montreal is the best of the six major banks when females as a percentage of upper-level managers, mid-level managers and professional occupations are combined. The Banque Nationale is the worst and the Bank of Nova Scotia is the second worst. The Bank of Montreal has the least female concentration of clerical workers and the Banque Nationale has the highest, while the Toronto Dominion is the second highest.

With respect to salaries, the Bank of Montreal has the least number of female fulltime employees earning less than \$25,000 and the Banque Nationale has the most, and the CIBC has the second highest proportion. Furthermore, the Bank of Montreal has the lowest number of female full-time clerical workers in the lowest two salary categories and the Bank of Nova Scotia has the most. The Bank of Nova Scotia has the least number of part-time employees earning less than \$15,000 and the Royal has the most.

If these three salary indicators are used as one ranking, the Bank of Montreal is the best with respect to female salaries. The CIBC and the Royal Bank are the second worst while the Banque Nationale is the worst. However, it must be remembered that even at the Bank of Montreal, 80% of its female employees earned less than \$27,500.

If the proportion of female part-time workers to total female workers is examined, the Royal Bank has the best proportion, while the Bank of Montreal has the worst, i.e. part-time employees constitute 14% of the Royal Bank's female labour force and 28% of the Bank of Montreal's.

If promotions, hiring and terminations of female employees are examined, the Toronto Dominion Bank is the best and the CIBC is the worst.

The Bank of Montreal ranks as the best bank in three of the five major categories examined, second best in one other, and last in another.

The Bank of Montreal had the highest percentage of part-time workers (22%). In addition, this bank terminated almost 400 female full-time employees and hired 352 female part-time employees.

This study has demonstrated that, while there has been some changes for female employees in the banking industry in the last 20 years, they have been relatively minor. Female employees are still occupationally segregated in the clerical occupation and constitute the largest proportion of employees in the lowest-paid sections of almost every occupation at each of the six major banks.

Female full-time employees predominate in the lower salary categories while male full-time employees predominate in the higher levels. Proportionally, women are receiving fewer of the promotions than men, even though they constitute a larger percentage of the workforce. To make matters worse, banks are reducing the number of female full-time employees and increasing the number of female part-time employees.

Therefore, it appears that any changes that have occurred are not acceptable or sufficient. Women are still predominantly found in the lower salary brackets and are occupationally segregated in clerical positions. These facts and figures need to be addressed.

It will require a longer study over time to see whether the present legislation has had any effect. Nevertheless, this study has disclosed how the banks treated their female labour force in 1987 relative to other sectors of the employment equity workforce and the Canadian labour force as a whole.

	CIBC	ROYAL BANK	BANK OF NOVA SCOTIA	BANK OF MONTREAL	TORONTO DOMINION	BANQUE NATIONALE
1. OCCUPATION						
F. as % of Total Upp. Mgrs.	2	6	1	4	T A 3	5
F. as % of Middle Mgrs.	4	2	5	a 1869.0	3	6
F. as % of Professionals	3	1	6	2	5	4
Clerical Workers as % of All F. Employees	3	L. 4	2	. 1 I	507	6
Sub-total	12	13	14	8	16	21
2. SALARIES						
% of F. in lower two salary quartiles - clerical occ.	3	4	6	1	2	5
F. as % of Total F. Full Time Employees earning <\$25,000	5	3	4	1	2	6
F. as % of Total F. Part Time Employees	5	6	1	2	3	4
earning <\$15,000	-		_	-	-	
Sub-total	13	13	11	4	7 -	15 2

TABLE 9.1BEST-WORST PERFORMANCE OF BANKS FOR WOMEN(1 - BEST, 6 - WORST)

37

TABLE 9.1 (cont'd)

C	IBC	ROYAL BANK	BANK OF NOVA SCOTIA	BANK OF TORONTO MONTREAL DOMINION	BANQUE NATIONALE
3. F/PART TIME	3	1	5	6 4	2
4. PROMOTIONS	6	5	4	1 3	2
5. TERMINATIONS	6	5	4	2 1	3
TOTAL	40	37	38	21 30	43

BEST-WORST PERFORMANCE OF BANKS FOR WOMEN (1 - BEST, 6 - WORST)

BIBLIOGRAPHY

Abella, Judge Rosalie Silberman. <u>Equality in Employment</u>. Ministry of Supply and Services. Ottawa, 1984.

Services. Ottawa, 1984. <u>Equality in Employment. Research Studies</u>. Ministry of Supply and

given at the Annual Fall Industrial Relations Seminar, Industrial Relations." An address University, 19-23 October 1987.

"Bell Canada and CBC challenge complaints". <u>Canadian Human Rights Advocate</u>. July 1989, Vol. V, No. 6, pg. 11.

Bossen, Marianne. <u>Manpower Utilization in Canadian Chartered Banks</u>. Studies of the Royal Commission on the Status of Women In Canada. Information Canada, Ottawa. 1971.

Brown, Carolyn Joyce. "Federal government passes watered-down employment equity bill." Perception, Volume 10, Number 3. January-February, 1987.

Canada. 1986 Census of Canada. "Summary Tabulations of Labour Force, Mobility and Schooling. Ottawa, March 1988.

Canada. "Employer's Handbook: Reporting on Employment Equity". Ministry of Supply and Services. Canada, 1987.

Canada. "Employment Equity: A Guide for Employers". Ministry of Supply and Services. Canada, 1987.

Canada. "Employment Equity Act, Regulations and Schedules". Ministry of Supply and Services. Canada, 1987.

Canada. "Employment Equity Technical Reference Papers." Ministry Supply and Services. Canada, 1987.

Commons Debates. Federal Government of Canada. With respect to Bill C-62, An Act respecting Employment Equity. April 10, 1986 to April 23, 1986.

"Employers will get free software for reports". Canadian Human Rights Advocate, Volume V, Number 1, January 1989, pg. 8.

"Federal report shows big pay gaps". Canadian Human Rights Advocate, Volume V, Number 1, January 1989, pg. 7.

Geller, Carole. "A critique of the Abella Report." Canadian Woman Studies, Volume 6, Number 4, pg. 20.

Globe and Mail. "Largest companies fail test for equal job opportunities." October 24, 1988, pg. 1.

Globe and Mail. "Royal Bank posts strongest profit; tops up reserves." Wednesday, March 8, 1989, pg. B1.

"19 equity reviews cover half of jobs". Canadian Human Rights Advocate, Volume V, Number 1, January 1989, pg. 1.

Sorren Mutanas. Manidova Liditation in Onadian Chinesed Banas. Sumies of the Royal Commission of the States of Women in Canada. Information Canada. Chan-

ntown, Europa Joyce. Betteral government pasters waterededown employment equity laft."

Consider 1986 frames of Canada, "Summary Textulations of Labour Force Mobiler and

Ganada. "Employet's Randbook: Reporting on Estaloyate's Equip?" Million of Super-

Serves, Cuede plat. Sevin A Guide for Employant. Miguta m supply and

rumada. "Emainplana Aqu'n Ara Reprisment aut "Chalder". Menare - Tuppa antfair-das Chalde. 1985

Davied, i film (vitin film) i vitin (vitin film) a filman i filman Mariatti asperi ma semitan (Carata film)

kommune istogen. En et et sommerer er slåtte førde reger og file forde Act Programs Erner, søde er erse og af et skør er erse for erse

analasi yang setup set

odena nekati yang jugitisi mana Patatriki Patatriki kelan Ada Kawa Patence -Ada ya arawa kelang dari

(a) BE Control is though a short before Report Controlled By 1987 (1997) in a second statement of the se second statement of the second statement o

APPENDICES

APPENDIX A NATIONAL FULL AND PART TIME EMPLOYEES BY BANK, OCCUPATIONAL CATEGORY AND SEX

APPENDIX B

NATIONAL FULL AND PART TIME EMPLOYEES BY BANK, OCCUPATIONAL CATEGORY, OCCUPATIONAL QUARTILE AND SEX

APPENDIX C

NATIONAL FULL AND PART TIME EMPLOYEES BY BANK, SALARY CATEGORY, AND SEX

APPENDIX D

HIRINGS, TERMINATIONS AND NET EFFECT EXPLANATION OF CALCULATIONS

APPENDIX E

PROMOTIONS IN FULL AND PART TIME EMPLOYMENT EXPLANATION OF CALCULATIONS

APPENDIX F

SALARY RANGE CALCULATIONS

APPENDIX A

NATIONAL FULL AND PART TIME EMPLOYEES BY BANK, OCCUPATIONAL CATEGORY AND SEX

APPENDIX A

NATIONAL FULL AND PART TIME EMPLOYEES BY BANK, OCCUPATIONAL CATEGORY AND SEX

- Table A-1.1 National Full Time Employees CIBC
- Table A-1.2 National Full Time Employees Royal Bank of Canada
 Table A-1.3 National Full Time Employees Bank of Nova Scotia
 Table A-1.4 National Full Time Employees Bank of Montreal
 Table A-1.5 National Full Time Employees Toronto Dominon Bank
 Table A-1.6 National Full Time Employees Banque Nationale
- Table A-2.1 National Part Time Employees CIBC
 Table A-2.2 National Part Time Employees Royal Bank of Canada
 Table A-2.3 National Part Time Employees Bank of Nova Scotia
 Table A-2.4 National Part Time Employees Bank of Montreal
 Table A-2.5 National Part Time Employees Toronto Dominon Bank
 Table A-2.6 National Part Time Employees Banque Nationale

APPENDIX A

- EXPLANATION OF CALCULATIONS

- Male Total number of full time (part time) male employees in the bank on a national basis in each occupation. Example: CIBC Upper Level Managers 158 full time male employees are in the upper level manager category.
- Female Total number of full time (part time) female employees in the bank on a national basis in each occupation. Example: CIBC Upper Level Managers 5 full time female employees are in the upper level manager category.
- % Male of Total Male Percentage of male employees that are in each occupation in the bank on a national basis. The number of full time (part time) male employees in each occupation/total number of full time (part time) male employees times 100. Example: CIBC - Upper Level Managers - (158/7,564) x 100 = 2.1% of national male employees at the CIBC are in the upper level manager category.
- % Female of Total Female Percentage of female employees that are in each occupation in the bank on a national basis. The number of full time (part time) female employees in each occupation/total number of full time (part time) female employees times 100. Example: CIBC - Upper Level Managers - (5/22,616) x 100 = 0.0% of national female employees are in the upper level manager category.
- Salaries Lowest and Highest: The lowest and the highest salary categories used in this occupation at each bank on a national basis. Example at the CIBC, the lowest salary paid to a middle level or other manager falls in the \$17,500 to \$19,999 category while the highest salary paid falls in the \$70,000 and over category. This is not broken down by sex on the original forms. Nor it there any indication of the number of employees in either of these categories.
- % of FT (PT) EMP Each bank's workforce analyzed by gender on a national basis, i.e. percentage of full time (part time) employees that are male and the percentage of full time (part time) employees that are female. The number of full time (part time) males/total number of employees x 100 and the number of full time (part time) females/total number of employees x 100. Example: CIBC (7,564/30,180) x 100 = 25.1% of all full time employees are male.
- % OF F. EMP. FT The percentage of female employees who are full time at the bank on a national baiss. (Full time + part time female employees)/(full time + part time employees) x 100. Example, CIBC - (22,616 + 5,766)/(30,180 + 6,129) x 100 = 78.2 of the workforce at the CIBC is female on a national basis.
- % of Total EMP. The percentage of the workforce that is part time by sex. Number of male part time employees/total number of employees x 100. Example: CIBC 363/(6,129 + 30,180) x 100 = 1.0% of the workforce that is part time and male.

TABLE A-1.1

NATIONAL - Full-Time Employees - CIBC

			% Male	% Fema	le
	Male	Female	of Iotal Male	Female	Lowest Highest
Upp. Mgrs.	158	5	2.1	0.0	70,000+ 70,000+
Mid. Mgrs.	3,475	1,838	45.9	8.1	17,500 70,000+ to 19,999
Professionals	1,636	1,996	21.6	8.8	15,000 70,000+ to 17,499
Supervisors	378	2,507	5.0	11.1	15,000 40,000 to 17,499 to 44,999
Clerical	1,524	15,915	20.1	70.4	10,000 35,000 to 12,499 to 39,999
Other	393	355	5.2	1.6	12,500 70,000+ to 64,999
TOTAL	7,564	22,616	99.9	100.0	I has nown!
TOTAL EMPLOYEES		30,180			
% OF FT. EMP.	25.1	74.9			
% OF F. EMP. FT.		79.7			
F. AS % OF EMP.		78.2			

NATIONAL - Full-Time Employees - Royal Bank

ie			% Male	% Fema	le	
ann's Ballin			of Total	of Total	Sa	laries
	Male	Female	Male	Female	Lowest	Highest
Upp. Mgrs.	153	2	1.8	0.0	65,000 to 69,999	70,000+
Mid. Mgrs.	5,044	3,236	59.3	12.8	20,000 to 22,499	70,000+
Professionals	1,760	2,704	20.7	10.7	15,000 to 17,499	70,000+
Supervisors	42	813	0.5	3.2	15,000 to 17,499	35,000 to 39,999
Clerical	1,334	18,463	15.7	73.0	12,500 to 14,999	35,000 to 39,999
Other	172	87	2.0	0.3	12,500 to 14,999	55,000 to 59,999
TOTAL	8,505	25,305	100.0	100.0		
TOTAL EMPLOYEES		33,810				
% OF FT. EMP.	25.2	74.8				
% OF F EMP FT		86 3				
		30.5				
F. AS % OF EMP.		11.2				

TABLE A-1.3

NATIONAL - Full-Time Employees - Bank of Nova Scotia

ile Salita	mai i		% Male of Total	% Fema of Total	le Salaries
	Male	Female	Male	Female	Lowest Highest
Upp. Mgrs.	121	4	2.3	0.0	70,000+ 70,000+
Mid. Mgrs.	3,022	1,534	58.4	11.1	17,500 70,000+ to 19,999
Professionals	699	259	13.5	1.9	25,000 70,000+ to 27,499
Supervisors	222	2,049	4.3	14.9	15,000 50,000 to 17,499 to 54,999
Clerical	583	9,288	11.3	67.5	12,500 45,000 to 14,999 to 49,999
Other	528	630	10.2	4.6	17,500 60,000 to 19,999 to 64,999
TOTAL	5,175	13,764	100.0	100.0	
TOTAL EMPLOYEES		18,939		2082.K	
% OF FT. EMP.	27.3	72.7			
% OF F. EMP. FT.		76.6			
F. AS % OF EMP.		76.9			

NATIONAL - Full-Time Employees - Bank of Montreal

	iemsit A		% Male	% Femal	le	ing
	Male F	emale	of I otal Male	Female	Lowest	Highest
Upp. Mgrs.	166	4	2.5	0.0	70,000+	70,000+
Mid. Mgrs.	3,627	3,774	55.6	25.9	17,500 to 19,999	70,000+
Professionals	1,704	2,379	26.1	16.3	15,000 to 17,499	70,000+
Supervisors	103	989	1.6	6.8	15,000 to 17,499 to	40,000 44,999
Clerical	698	7,366	10.7	50.5	12,500 to 14,999 to	30,000 34,999
Other	221	65	3.4	0.4	10,000 to 12,499	70,000+
TOTAL	6,519	14,577	99.9	99.9		
TOTAL EMPLOYEES	5	21,096				
% OF FT. EMP.	30.9	69.1				
% OF F. EMP. FT.	72.2					
F. AS % OF EMP.	74.6					

TABLE A-1.5

NATIONAL - Full-Time Employees - Toronto Dominion Bank

taluita Mortura	Male	Female	% Male of Total Male	% Fema of Total Female	le Salaries Lowest Highest
Upp. Mgrs.	330	9	7.0	0.1	70,000+ 70,000+
Mid. Mgrs.	2,916	1,820	61.8	13.8	25,000 65,000 to 27,499 to 69,999
Professionals	177	68	3.8	0.5	27,500 70,000+ to 29,999
Supervisors	139	983	2.9	7.5	17,500 35,000 to 19,999 to 39,999
Clerical	1,115	10,242	23.6	77.6	12,500 35,000 to 14,999 to 39,999
Other Charles Control of	42	. 71	0.9	0.5	20,000*** 65,000*** to 22,499 to 69,999
TOTAL TOTAL EMPLOYEES	4,719	13,193 17,912	100.0	100.0	
% OF FT. EMP.	26.3	73.7			
% OF F. EMP. FT.		77.6		P.06	
F. AS % OF EMP.		77.4			

TABLE A-1.6

NATIONAL - Full-Time Employees - Banque Nationale

			% Male	% Fema	le
		inde T lo	of Total	of Total	Salaries
	Male	Female	Male	Female	Lowest Highest
Upp. Mgrs.	46	0.0 1	0 1.7	0.0	70,000+ 70,000+
Mid. Mgrs.	1,519	519	55.9	6.7	22,500 70,000+ to 24,999
Professionals	640	616	23.6	8.0	17,500 70,000+ to 19,999
Supervisors	33	108	1.2	1.4	20,000 30,000 to 22,499 to 34,999
Clerical	244	6,002	9.0	77.9	12,500 35,000 to 14,999 to 39,999
Other	234	458	8.6	5.9	20,000 50,000 to 22,499 to 54,999
		*			
TOTAL	2,716	7,704	100.0	99.9	
TOTAL EMPLOYEES		10,420			
% OF FT. EMP.	26.1	73.9			
% OF F. EMP. FT.		80.0			
F. AS % OF EMP.		77.2			

NATIONAL - Part-Time Employees - CIBC

sits) Sits) Reputarit Repvisit	Male	Female	% Male of Total Male	% Fema of Total Female	le Salaries Lowest Highest
Upp. Mgrs.	0	0	0.0	0.0	
Mid. Mgrs.	1	2	0.3	0.0	10,000 20,000 to 12,499 to 22,499
Professionals	2	82	0.6	1.4	2,500 25,000 to 4,999 to 27,499
Supervisors		77	0.8	1.3	2,500 22,500 to 4,999 to 24,999
Clerical	354	5,587	97.5	96.9	0 30,000 to 2,499 to 34,999
Other	3	18	0.8	0.3	0 25,000 to 2,499 to 27,499
TOTAL	363	5,766	100.0	99.9	
TOTAL EMPLOYEES		6,129			
% OF PT. EMP.	5.9	94.1	م. ۲		
% OF TOTAL EMP.	1.0	15.9	= 16.9		

TABLE A-2.3

NATIONAL - Part-Time Employees - Bank of Nova Scotia

ali			% Male	% Fema	le	laries
	Male	Female	Male	Female	Lowest	Highest
Upp. Mgrs.	0	0	0.0	0.0		
Mid. Mgrs.	2	0.05	0.9	0.1	17,500 to 19,999	70,000+
Professionals	0	6	0.0	0.1	30,000 to 34,999	50,000 to 54,999
Supervisors	3	47	1.4	1.1	17,500 to 19,999	35,000 to 39,999
Clerical	211	4,130	97.2	98.3	12,500 to 14,999	30,000 to 34,999
Other	1	12	0.5	0.3	15,000 to 17,499	40,000 to 44,999
TOTAL	217	4,200	100.0	99.9		
TOTAL EMPLOYEES		4,417				
OF DT EMD	10	05 1				
WOF FI. EMP.	4.9	95.1				
% OF TOTAL EMP.	0.9	18.0	= 18.9			

TABLE A-2.4

NATIONAL - Part-Time Employees - Bank of Montreal

	empire de		% Male	% Fema	le	
	unit in	Ling in	of Total	of Total	S	alaries
	Male	Female	Male	Female	Lowest	Highest
Upp. Mgrs.	0	0	0.0	0.0		
Mid. Mgrs.	13	127	3.5	2.3	2,500 to 4,999	30,000 to 34,999
Professionals	33	61	8.9	1.1	2,500 to 4,999	22,500 to 24,999
Supervisors	1	21	0.3	0.4	2,500 to 4,999	22,500 to 24,999
Clerical	308	5,399	83.5	96.0	0 to 2,499	27,500 to 29,999
Other	14	16	3.8	0.3	0	27,500
· · ·					10 2,477	10 29,999
TOTAL	369	5,624	100.0	100.0		
TOTAL EMPLOYEES		5,993				
% OF PT. EMP.	6.2	93.8				
% OF TOTAL EMP.	1.4	20.8	= 22.2			

TABLE A-2.5

NATIONAL - Part-Time Employees - Toronto Dominion Bank

and and a second se	Male	Female	% Male of Total Male	% Fema of Total Female	le Lowest	Salaries Highest
Upp. Mgrs.	0	0	0.0	0.0		
Mid. Mgrs.	17	137	6.8	3.6	2,500 to 4,999	45,000 to 49,999
Professionals	0	0	0.0	0.0		
Supervisors	0	0	0.0	0.0		
Clerical	232	3,660	93.2	96.4	0 to 2,499	27,500 to 29,999
Other	0	0	0.0	0.0		
TOTAL	249	3,797	100.0	100.0		
TOTAL EMPLOYEES	5	4,046				
% OF PT. EMP.	6.2	93.8				
% OF TOTAL EMP.	1.1	17.3	= 18.4			

1 40 7

			% Male of Total	% Fema	ale S	alaries
	Male	Female	Male	Female	Lowest	Highest
Upp. Mgrs.	0	0	0.0	0.0		
Mid. Mgrs.	0	0	0.0	0.0		
Professionals	0	1	0.0	0.1	12,500 to 14,999	12,500 to 14,999
Supervisors	0	0	0.0	0.0		
Clerical	103	1,892	84.4	98.5	not given to 22,499	20,000
Other	19	27	15.6	1.4	5,000 to 7,499	20,000 to 22,499
TOTAL	122	1,920	100.0	100.0		
TOTAL EMPLOYEES		2,042				
% OF PT. EMP.	6.0	94.0				
% OF TOTAL EMP.	1.0	15.4	= 16.4			

NATIONAL - Part-Time Employees - Banque Nationale

APPENDIX B

NATIONAL FULL AND PART TIME EMPLOYEES BY BANK, OCCUPATIONAL CATEGORY,

SALARY QUARTILE AND OCCUPATIONAL QUARTILE, AND SEX

APPENDIX B

NATIONAL FULL AND PART TIME EMPLOYEES

BY BANK, OCCUPATIONAL CATEGORY,

SALARY RANGE AND OCCUPATIONAL QUARTILE, AND SEX

- Table B-1.1 National Full Time Employees CIBC
- Table B-1.2 National Full Time Employees Royal Bank of Canada
 Table B-1.3 National Full Time Employees Bank of Nova Scotia
 Table B-1.4 National Full Time Employees Bank of Montreal
 Table B-1.5 National Full Time Employees Toronto Dominon Bank
- Table B-1.6 National Full Time Employees Banque Nationale
- Table B-2.1 National Part Time Employees CIBC
- Table B-2.2 National Part Time Employees Royal Bank of Canada
- Table B-2.3 National Part Time Employees Bank of Nova Scotia
- Table B-2.4 National Part Time Employees Bank of Montreal
- Table B-2.5 National Part Time Employees Toronto Dominon Bank
- Table B-2.6 National Part Time Employees Banque Nationale
- Table B-3.1 Salary Ranges by Occupational Quartile CIBC
- Table B-3.2 Salary Ranges by Occupational Quartile Royal Bank
- Table B-3.3 Salary Ranges by Occupational Quartile Nova Scotia
- Table B-3.4 Salary Ranges by Occupational Quartile Bank of Montreal
- Table B-3.5 Salary Ranges by Occupational Quartile Toronto Dominion
- Table B-3.6 Salary Ranges by Occupational Quartile Banque Nationale

APPENDIX B

EXPLANATION OF CALCULATIONS

- Male Total number of full time (part time) male employees in the bank on a national basis in each occupation by quartile. A total is then calculated for each occupation. Example: CIBC Upper Level Managers, Quartile 1 152 full time male employees are in the upper level manager category, quartile 1 and 158 male employees are in this occupation.
- Female Total number of full time (part time) female employees in the bank on a national basis in each occupation by quartile. A total is then calculated for each occupation. Example: CIBC Upper Level Managers, Quartile 1 5 full time female employees are in the upper level manager category, quartile 1 and 5 female employees are in this occupation.
- Male % of M Category Percentage of full time (part time) male employees in each quartile for a particular occupation. The (number of full time (part time) male employees in a quartile/total number of full time (part time) male employees in category) x 100. Example: CIBC Upper Level Managers, Quartile 1 (152/158) x 100 = 96.2% of males in this occupation are in quartile 1.
- Female % of F Category Percentage of full time (part time) female employees in each quartile for a particular occupation. A total is then calculated for each occupation. The (number of full time (part time) female employees in a quartile/total number of full time (part time) female employees in category) x 100. Example: CIBC Upper Level Managers, Quartile 1 $(5/5) \times 100 = 100.0\%$ of females in this occupation are in quartile 1.
- Female % of Quartile Percentage of each quartile that is female. The (number of full time (part time) female employees in each quartile/total number of full time (part time) employees in each quartile) x 100. A total is then calculated for each occupation. Example: CIBC Upper Level Managers, quartile 1 (5/157) x 100 = 3.2% of this quartile is female.
- Female % of Total Employees female labour force as a percentage of the total labour force found in each quartile. The (number of full time (part time) females in each quartile/total number of full time (part time) employees) x 100. Example: CIBC Upper Level Managers, Quartile 1 (5/30,180) x 100 = 0.0% females in the upper level manager quartile 1 represent 0.0% of all employees.

Total Employees - The total number of full time (part time) females by sex.

If the highest salary was not "\$70,000+" the calculations were:

The width of each quartile was calculated by subtracting the lowest salary from the highest salary and dividing the result by four.

The width of each quartile was then added to the lowest salary to find the top salary for the first quartile. The bottom of the second quartile was calculated by adding one to the top of the first quartile. The top of the second quartile was calculated by adding the width of the quartile to the bottom of quartile two. The bottom of the third quartile was calculated by adding one to the top of the second quartile, etc.

If the highest salary was "\$70,000+" the calculations were:

The width of each quartile was calculated by subtracting the lowest salary from the highest salary and dividing the result by three. This is divided by three and not by four as in the above calculations because the high for the salary range is not actually given.

The width of each quartile was then added to the lowest salary to find the top salary for the first quartile. The bottom of the second quartile was calculated by adding one to the top of the first quartile. The top of the second quartile was calculated by adding the width of the quartile to the bottom of quartile two. The bottom of the third quartile was calculated by adding one to the top of the second quartile to the bottom of the top of the second quartile two.

Therefore; any salaries for quartiles with \$70,000+ as the highest salary will be over stated with respect to salary quartile size because actual highest salary was not given.

NATIONAL - Full-Time Employees - CIBC

2

					Male % of M	Female % % of F	Female % of	Female % of Total	
			Male	Female	Category	Category	Quartile	Employees	
		4	1	0	0.6	0.0	0.0	0.0	
Upper-Level		3	0	0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	
Managers		2	5	0	3.2	0.0	0.0	0.0	
0		1	152	5	96.2	100.0	3.2	0.0	
TOTAL	on Local R		158	5	100.0	100.0	3.1	0.0	
		4	3	0	0.1	0.0	0.0	0.0	
Middle-Level		3	94	2	2.7	0.1	2.1	0.0	
Managers		2	1.574	149	45.3	8.1	9.5	0.5	
g		1	1,804	1,687	51.9	91.8	48.3	5.6	
TOTAL			3,475	1,838	100.0	100.0	34.6	6.1	
	<u>ç</u>	1	1	0	0.2	0.0	0.0	0.0	
Professionals		4	4	0	0.2	0.0	0.0	0.0	
TIORSSTONALS		2	171	25	10.5	1.3	128	0.1	
•		1	1,456	1,971	89.0	98.7	57.5	6.5	
TOTAL			1,636	1,996	100.0	100.0	55.0	6.6	
	NUA	10		T.h I				<u> </u>	
		4	23	44	6.1	1.8	65.7	0.1	
Supervisors		3	79	299	20.9	11.9	79.1	1.0	
		2	128	1,165	33.9	46.5	90.1	3.9	
		1	148	999	39.2	39.8	87.1	3.3	
TOTAL			378	2,507	100.1	100.0	86.9	8.3	
		4	70	135	4.6	0.8	65.9	0.4	
Clerical		3	200	660	19.6	4 1	68.8	2.2	
Citilitia		2	523	5 658	34 3	35.6	91.5	18.7	
		1	632	9,462	41.5	59.5	93.7	31.4	
TOTAL			1,524	15,915	100.0	100.0	91.3	52.7	
		1	26	2	6.6	0.8	10.3	0.0	
Other		+ 2	20	3	17.8	73	271	0.1	
Julici		2	214	156	54 5	13.0	42.2	0.7	
		1	83	170	21.1	47.9	67.2	0.8	
TOTAL			393	355	100.0	99.9	47.5	. 1.6	
TOTAL EM	PLOYEES		7.564	22,616	= 30	.180			

NATIONAL - Full-Time Employees - Royal Bank

n Francisco III. In III.		Male	Female	Male % of M Category	Female % of F Category	Female % of Quartile	Female % of Total Employees	
	4	4	0	2.6	0.0	0.0	0.0	
Upper-Level	3	3	0	2.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	
Managers	2	31	0	20.3	0.0	0.0	0.0	
	1	115	2	75.2	100.0	1.3	0.0	
TOTAL		153	2	100.1	100.0	1.3	0.0	
	4	1	0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	_
Middle-Level	3	267	3	5.3	0.1	1.1	0.0	
Managers	2	2.223	270	44.1	8.3	10.8	0.8	
	1	2,553	2,963	50.6	91.6	53.7	8.8	
TOTAL		5,044	3,236	100.0	100.0	39.1	9.6	
	4	11	0	0.6	0.0	0.0	0.0	
Professionals	3	35	. 3	2.0	0.0	7.9	0.0	
11010051011215	2	396	114	22.5	4.2	22 4	0.0	
	1	1,318	2,587	74.9	95.7	66.2	7.7	
TOTAL		1,760	2,704	100.0	100.0	60.6	8.0	
	4	2	3	47	0.4	60.0	0.0	
Supervisors	3	. 9	151	20.9	18.6	94.4	0.4	
ouper nooro	2	18	439	44 ?	54.0	961	1.7	, a
	1	13	220	30.2	27.1	94.4	0.7	
TOTAL		42	813	100.0	100.1	95.1	3.2	
	4	0	35	07	0.2	70 5	0.1	
Clerical	3	62	827	1.6	4.5	93.0	24	
Clothold	2	473	8 604	35 5	46.6	94.8	25.4	
	1	790	8,997	59.2	48.7	91.9	26.6	
TOTAL		1,334	18,463	100.0	100.0	93.3	54.6	
	4	20	2	11.6	2.2	0.1	0.0	
Other	4	20	4	11.0	2.3	7.1	0.0	
Ould	20	64	20	20.0	J. / 14 Q	370	0.0	
	1	25	41	14.5	47.1	62.1	0.2	
TOTAL		172	87	99.9	99.9	33.6	0.3	
								(A.
TOTAL EMPLOYEES		8,505	25,305	= 33,810				

NATIONAL - Full-Time Employees - Bank of Nova Scotia

		-				N %	fale of M		Female % of F		Female %	Fe of	male %	
			Male	F	emale	Cat	egory	g) il	Category		Quartile	Er	nployee	S
TTT	60	4	1		0		0.8		0.0		0.0		0.0	
Upper-Leve	:1	3	1		0		0.8		0.0		0.0		0.0	
Managers		2	1		0		0.8		0.0		0.0		0.0	
		1	118		4	9	7.5		100.0		3.4		0.0	
TOTAL			121		4	9	9.9		100.9		3.2		0.0	
		4	12	1.0	1	1	0.4	12	01		77	Middle	0.0	
Middle-Lev	el	3	237		13		7.8		0.8		52		0.1	
Managers		2	1,454		162	4	8.1		10.6		10.0		0.0	
		1	1,319		1,358	4	3.6		88.5		50.7		7.2	
TOTAL	118	11.00	3,022		1,534	9	9.9		100.0		33.7		8.1	
		4	6	6.1	0		0.9		0.0		0.0		0.0	
Professional	ls	3	54		12		7.7		46		18.2		0.1	
		2	343		74	4	9.1		28.6		177		04	
		1	296		173	4	2.3		66.8		36.9		0.9	
TOTAL	2.87		699		259	10	0.0		100.0		27.0		1.4	•
	h at	1	2		1				0.0		25.0			
Supervisors		3	15		15		1.4		0.0		25.0		0.0	
0400115015		2	15		15	1	0.8		0.7		50.0		0.1	
		1	129		1.556	5	3.8 8.1		23.3		86.4 92 3		2.5	
ΤΟΤΔΙ			222		2.040		0.1		, 5.5		12.5		0.2	
					2,049	10	0.1		99.9		90.2		10.8	
-		4	9		3		1.5		0.0		25.0		0.0	
Clerical		3	31		70		5.3		0.8		69.3		0.4	
		2	133		1,433	2	2.8		15.4		91.5		7.6	
		1	410		7,782	7	0.3		83.8		95.0		41.1	
TOTAL	**		583		9,288	9	9.9		100.0		94.1		49.0	
	1.5	4	35	1.0	2	and the second second	6.6		0.2	,	5.1	1	0.0	
Other		3	101		26	1	0.0		1 1		20.5		0.0	
		2	230		236	1	3.6		7.1		50.6		2.2	
		1	162		366	3	0.7		58.1		69.3		31.6	
TOTAL			528		630	10	0.0		100.0		54.4	. 1	54.4	
TOTAL EN	(PLOYEES		5,175		13,764	= 18,	939							

NATIONAL - Full-Time Employees - Bank of Montreal

		-					Male % of M		Female % of F	Female %	Fema of To	le %	
			Male	Fe	male	C	ategory		Category	Quartile	Empl	oyees	
		4	1		0		0.6		0.0	0.0		0.0	
Time of Tax	-1	4	1		0		1.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	
Upper-Leve	e1	3	2		0		1.2		0.0	0.0		0.0	
Managers		2	1		0		4.2		0.0	0.0	Transfer and the second se	0.0	
		1	156		4		94.0		100.0	2.6	CERENCE	0.0	
TOTAL			166		4		100.0	191	100.0	2.4	ATOT	0.0	'n
		4	35		2		1.0		0.1	5.4		0.0	
Middle-Le	vel	3	515		34		14.2		0.9	6.2		0.2	
Managers		2	1.926		442		53.1		11.7	18.7		2.1	
		1	1,151		3,296		31.7		87.3	74.1	1	5.6	
TOTAL			3,627		3,774		100.0		100.0	51.0	1	.7.9	
		4	2		-		0.2		0.0	0.0		0.0	
D	1	4	2		0		0.2		0.0	0.0		0.0	
Protession	ais	3	2		0		0.1		0.0	0.0		0.0	
		2	79		12		4.6		0.5	13.2		0.1	
	0.42	1	1,620		2,367		95.1		99.5	59.4		11.2	
TOTAL			1,704	0.00	2,379		100.0	44	100.0	58.3	MATUR 1	11.3	
		A	5		6		49		0.6	54.5		0.0	
Supervice	and a second	2	50		100		19 5		10.0	68.4		0.5	
Supervisor	13	2	50		100		40.0		10.9	02.4		23	
		2	40		487		38.8		49.2	92.4		1.0	
		1	8		388		7.8		39.2	98.0		1.8	
TOTAL	Β ₂	1, IN	103	i M	989	40	100.0	23	99.9	90.6	- 111	4.7	
		4	1		13		0.1		0.2	92.9		0.1	
Clarical		3	16		161		6.6		63	90.9		2.2	
Cicilical		2	260		4 626		51.6		62.0	02.8		22.0	
		4	300		4,030		J1.0		20.6	00 6		10.7	
		1	291		2,256		41./		30.0	00.0		10.7	
TOTAL		. 4	698	42	7,366	ч£ .	100.0		100.0	91.3	200	34.9	
		A	21		2	1	14.0		16	. 88		0.0	
Out		4	51		2		14.0		4.0	125		0.0	
Other		5	20		8		23.3		12.5	14.5		0.0	
		2	60		24		27.1		30.9	28.0		0.1	
		1	74		30		33.5		46.2	28.8		0.1	
TOTAL			221		65		99.9		100.0	22.7		0.3	
TOTAL	EMPLOYEES		6,519		14,577	=	21,096						

NATIONAL - Full-Time Employees - Toronto Dominion Bank

nofi stations?				Male % of M	Female % of F	Female % of	Female % of Total	
	-	Male	Female	Category	Category	Quartile	Employees	
	4	5	0	1.5	0.0	0.0	0.0	
Upper-Level	3	12	0	3.6	0.0	0.0	0.0	
Managers	2	40	0	12.1	0.0	0.0	0.0	
	1	273	9	82.7	100.0	3.3	0.1	
TOTAL	0.0	330	9	99.9	100.0	2.7	0.1	
	4	372	22	12.8	12	5.6	0.1	
Middle-Level	3	682	121	23.4	6.6	151	0.7	
Managers	2	1.122	705	38 5	38.7	38.6	3.0	
21	1	740	972	25.4	53.4	56.8	5.4	
TOTAL	6.0	2,916	1,820	100.0	99.9	38.4	10.2	
the second second second	4	11	1	6.2	15	0 7	0.0	
Professionals	3	11	1	0.2	1.5	8.3	0.0	
11010331011213	2	100	13	21.1	19.1	21.0	0.1	
	1	109	44	01.0	04.7	28.8	0.2	
		0	10	4.5	14./	22.0	0.1	
TOTAL	n:	177	68	100.0	100.0	27.8	0.4	
	4	0	23	0.0	23	100.0	0.1	
Supervisors	3	25	197	18.0	101	88 7	11	
	2	87	623	62.6	64 7	877	35	
	1	27	140	19.1	14.7	83.8	0.8	
TOTAL	10	139	983	100.0	100.0	87.6	5.5	
	[2]		1	П)	Г.,	- - [#	1.11	
01	4	5	51	0.4	0.5	91.1	0.3	
Clerical	3	102	484	9.1	4.7	82.6	2.7	
	2	561	4,565	50.3	44.6	89.1	25.5	
	1	447	5,142	40.1	50.2	92.0	28.7	
TOTAL	P.L	1,115	10,242	99.9	100.0	90.2	57.2	
	4	2	1	4.0	1.4	22.2	0.0	1
Other	3	4	7	4.8	1.4	33.5	0.0	
	2	27	20	19.0	9.9	40.1	0.1	
	1	5	33	04.5	42.5	0.2	0.2	
ΤΟΤΑΙ		10		100.0	100 1	(2.2	0.4	
IUTAL		42	/1	100.0	100.1	62.8	0.4	
							ejti .	
IUTAL EMPLOYEES		4,719	13,193	= 17,912				

NATIONAL - Full-Time Employees - Banque Nationale

. .

in annos	•	Male	Female	Male % of M Category	Female % of F Category	Female % of Ouartile	Female % of Total Employees	1
				0000801	0000800		1	
1111	4	2	0	4.3	0.0	0.0	0.0	
Upper-Level	3	0	0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	
Managers	2	2	0	4.3	0.0	0.0	0.0	
	1	42	1	91.3	100.0	2.3	0.0	
TOTAL		46	1	99.9	100.0	2.1	0.0	5
	4	1	1	0.1	0.2	50.0	0.0	
Middle-Level	3	4	0	0.3	0.0	0.0	0.0	
Managers	2	255	12	16.8	2.3	4.5	0.1	
	1	1,259	506	82.9	97.5	28.7	4.9	
TOTAL		1,519	519	100.1	100.0	25.5	5.0	
	4	1	0	0.2	0.0	0.0	0.0	
Professionals	3	5	1	0.2	0.2	16.7	0.0	
11010051011213	2	55	12	8.6	19	179	0.1	
	1	579	603	90.5	97.9	51.0	5.8	
TOTAL		640	616	100.1	100.0	49.0	5.9	
្រុំ ស្រា	A	1	3	3.0	28	75.0	0.0	
Supervisors	3	14	25	12.0	23.1	64.1	0.2	
Supervisors	2	14	56	42.4	51.0	80.0	0.5	
	1	4	24	12.1	22.2	85.7	0.2	
TOTAL		33	108	99.9	100.0	76.6	1.0	
1.12 1.12					204	100.0	0.0	
01-1-1	4	0	3	0	0.1	100.0	0.0	
Cierical	3	14	106	5./	1.8	88.5	1.0	
	2	97	1,998	39.8	33.3	95.4	19.2	
	1	133	3,895	54.5	64.9	96.7	57.4	
TOTAL		244	6,002	100.0	100.1	96.1	57.6	
мана на селото на се На селото на		1	4			0.0	0.0	
0.1	4	19	0	8.1	0.0	0.0	0.0	
Other	3	32	1	13.7	0.2	. 3.0	0.0	
	2	70	53	29.9	11.6	43.1	0.5	
	1	113	404	48.3	88.2	/8.1	3.9	*
TOTAL		234	458	100.0	100.0	66.2	.4.4	
							ы ^{ре} 3	
TOTAL EMPLOYEE	s 27	16 7 704	- 10.420					

							Male % of M		Female % of F	Female %	6 Fer	nale % Total	
		1	3	Male	Fe	male	Category		Category	Quartile	Em	ployees	
		4		0		0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	
Upper-Level		3		0		0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	
Managers		2		0		0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	
		1		0		0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	
TOTAL	0.0	0,4		0	0.0	0	0.0	0	0.0	0.0	LANGI .	0.0	
		4		0		2	0.0		100.0	100.0		0.0	
Middle-Leve	I DOT	3		Õ		0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	
Managers	0.001	2		0		0	0.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	
		1		1		0	100.0		0.0	0.0		0.0	
TOTAL				1		2	100.0		100.0	66.7	1.1.1.1.	0.0	
	1.1.1.1.1.1	4	-	0	10-10	6	0.0		7 3	100.0		0.1	
Drofossional	A	4		0		22	0.0		1.5	100.0		0.1	
Professionals	5	2		0		33	0.0		40.2	100.0		0.5	
		2		0		38	0.0		40.3	100.0		0.0	
		1		2		5	100.0		6.1	/1.4		0.1	
TOTAL	2			2		82	100.0	I	99.9	97.6	Winstein 	1.3	
	1001	4	01	0	113	2	0.0	5	2.6	100.0		0.0	
Supervisors		3		õ		18	0.0		23.4	100.0		0.3	
o apor 1.5015	0.691	2		3		43	100.0		55.8	93 5		0.7	
		1		Ő		14	0.0		18.2	100.0		0.2	
TOTAL				3		77	100.0		100.0	96.3		1.3	
	.30	4	41	0	5.1	1	0.0	i,	0.0	100.0	ž	0.0	
Clerical		3		1		26	0.3		0.5	96.3		0.4	
Civilia		2		112		2 896	31.6		51.8	96.3		47.3	
		1		241		2,664	68.1		47.7	91.7		43.5	
TOTAL				354		5,587	100.0		100.0	94.0		91.2	
	tere in standard and a se								16.7	75.0	(c)	0.0	
0.1		4		1		3	33.3		10./	/5.0		0.0	
Uner		3		1		5	33.3		21.8	83.3		0.1	
		2		1		7	33.3		38.9	87.5		0.1	
		1		0		3	0.0		16.7	100.0		0.0	
TOTAL				3		18	99.9		100.1	85.7		0.3	
TOTAL EM	IPLOYEES			363		5,766	= 6,129						

NATIONAL - Part-Time Employees - Royal Bank of Canada de Constanting and

		-				Male % of M	л	Female	Female %	Female %	
			Male	Fer	nale	Category	1	Category	Quartile	Employees	E
		4	0		0	0.0		0.0	0.0	0.0	
Upper-Leve	1	3	0		0	0.0		0.0	0.0	0.0	
Managers		2	0		0	0.0		0.0	0.0	0.0	
		1	0		0	0.0		0.0	0.0	0.0	
TOTAL	0.0		0		0	0.0		0.0	0.0	0.0	
	0./01	4	0	8.0	2	0.0	6	13.3	100.0	0.0	
Middle-Lev	el	3	0		2	0.0		13.3	100.0	0.0	
Managers		2	0		6	0.0		40.0	100.0	0.1	
		1	0		5	0.0		33.3	100.0	0.1	
TOTAL	1.85	105	0		15	0.0		99.9	100.0	0.4	
		4	0	1. 	1	0.0		22	100.0	0.0	
Professiona	ls	3	0		1	0.0		2.2	100.0	0.0	
		2	0		27	0.0		60.0	100.0	0.0	
		1	1		16	100.0		00.0	100.0	0.0	
	1.11	1	1		10	100.0		33.0	94.1	0.4	
TOTAL	410	646	1	a Br	45	100.0	1	100.0	97.8	1.1	
		4	0		2	0.0		10.5	100.0	0.0	
Supervisors		3	0		3	0.0		158	100.0	0.1	
		2	0		6	0.0		31.6	100.0	0.1	
		1	2		8	100.0		42.1	80.0	0.2	
TOTAL	i e		2		19	100.0		100.0	90.5	0.5	
		4	0		1	0.0		0.0	100.0	0.0	
Clerical		3	2		37	12		0.9	94.9	0.0	
		2	57		1 634	33.0		417	06.6	30.1	
		1	109		2,242	64.9		57.3	95.4	53.7	
TOTAL		168	3,914		100.0	99.9		95.9	93.7		
	1 195 240	4	1		6	100.0		EAE	95.7	0.1	
Other		2	0		0	100.0		34.3	85.7	0.1	
Juivi		2	0		1	0.0		9.1	100.0	0.0	
		4	0		1	0.0		9.1	100.0	0.0	
		1	0		3	0.0		27.3	100.0	0.1	
TOTAL			1		11	100.0		100.0	91.7	0.3	4
TOTAL EN	IPLOYEE	ES	172	2	4,004	= 4,176					

--

NATIONAL - Part-Time Employees - Bank of Nova Scotia

		WHERE S		The second	Male % of M	Female % of F	Female %	Female % of Total	
			Male	Female	Category	Category	Quartile	Employees	
		4	0	0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	
Inner-Level		3	Õ	0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	
Managers		2	0	0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	
Managers		1	0	0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	
		ba ,	0		0.0	. 0.0	0.0	0.0	
TOTAL		a.a.	0	0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	
		4	0	1	0.0	20.0	100.0	0.0	
Middle-Level	1.52	3	. 0	0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	
Managers		2	0	0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	
11101102013		1	2	4	100.0	80.0	66.7	0.1	
TOTAL			2	5.00	100.0	100.0	71.4	0.1	
			6		100.0	10010			
		4	0	. 2	0.0	33 3	100.0	0.0	
Professionale	2.82	2	0	2	0.0	33.3	100.0	0.0	
FIDIESSIDIIAIS	Cent.	2	0	2	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	
		2	0	0	0.0	22.2	100.0	0.0	
		1	0	Pi005	0.0	33.3	100.0	0.0	
TOTAL			0	6	0.0	99.9	100.0	0.1	
	2 Y 2		0	teretera Parte	0.0	21	100.0	0.0	Y.
c ·		4	0		0.0	4.1	100.0	0.0	
Supervisors		3	0	2	0.0	4.5	100.0	0.0	
		2	0	9	0.0	19.1	100.0	0.2	
	h Ha	1	3	35	100.0	74.5	92.1	0.8	
TOTAL			3	47	100.0	100.0	94.0	1.1	
		4	1		. 05	0.1	83.3	0.1	
Classic		4	1		0.5	0.1	100.0	2.0	
Cierical		3	0	8	0.0	4.1	100.0	13.6	
		2	23	1,925	10.9	40.0	70.0	47 Q	
		1	187	2,113	88.6	51.2	91.9	+1.0	
TOTAL			211	4,130) 100.0	100.0	95.1	93.5	
		1.11		Sector 1			100.0	0.1	
S_8		4	0	4	+ 0.0	33.3	100.0	0.1	
Other		3	0		0.0	8.3	100.0	0.0	
		2	0		3 0.0	25.0	100.0	0.1	
		1	1	L Kr L	4 100.0	33.3	80.0	0.1	
TOTAL		1	12	100.	99.9	92.3	0.3	÷	
TOTAL EM	IPLOYEES		217	4,20	0 = 4,417				

NATIONAL - Part-Time Employees - Bank of Montreal

		Male	Female	Male % of M Category	Female % of F Category	Female % of Ouartile	Female % of Total	
	Λ	0	0	0.0	0.0		Linployees	
Upper-Level	3	0	0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	
Managers	2	0	0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	
Berg	1	0	0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	
	1	U	0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	2
TOTAL		0	0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	
	4	0	6	0.0	4.7	100.0	0.1	
Middle-Level	3	2	31	15.4	24.4	93.9	0.5	
Managers	2	4	67	30.8	52.8	94.4	0.1	
	1	7	23	53.8	18.1	76.7	0.4	
TOTAL	20 Q	13	127	100.0	100.0	90.7	2.1	
	4	2	7	61	11.5	77 8	0.1	
Professionals	3	30	- 22	90.9	36.1	423	0.1	
	2	1	30	3.0	49 2	96.8	0.5	
	1	0	2	0.0	3.3	100.0	0.0	
					0.0	10010	0.0	
TOTAL		33	61	100.0	100.1	64.9	1.0	
and the state of	4	1	7	100.0	33.3	87.5	0.1	
Supervisors	3	0	5	0.0	23.8	100.0	0.1	
	2	0	6	0.0	28.6	100.0	0.1	
	1	0	3	0.0	14.3	100.0	0.1	
TOTAL								
		1	21	100.0	100.0	95.5	0.4	
	4	0	8	0.0	0.1	100.0	0.1	
Clerical	3	34	930	11.0	17.2	96.5	15.5	
	2	161	3,378	52.3	62.6	95.5	56.4	
	1	113	1,083	36.7	20.1	90.6	18.1	
TOTAL		308	5,399	100.0	100.0	94.6	90.1	
	4	4	3	29.6	10.0	42.0	0.1	
Other	3	3	2	20.0	10.0	42.9	0.1	
	2	4	4	21.4	31 2	40.0	0.0	
	1	3	5	20.0	37.5	55.0	0.1	
		2	0	£1.7	51.5	00.7	0.1	**
TOTAL		14	16	100.0	100.1	53.3	27	
						55.5	4e. 1	
TOTAL EMPLOYEES		369	5,624	= 5,993				×

建筑电路增加 计中
NATIONAL - Part-Time Employees - Toronto Dominion Bank

						Male % of M		Female % of F	Female % of	Female % of Total
			Male	Fen	nale	Category	1	Category	Quartile	Employees
		4	0		0	0.0		0.0	0.0	0.0
and I aval		3	0		0	0.0		0.0	0.0	0.0
pper-Lever		2	0		0	0.0		0.0	0.0	0.0
lanagers		1	0		0	0.0		0.0	0.0	0.0
OTAL			0		0	0.0		0.0	0.0	0.0
	10	.0.0		0.0	2	11.0	U.	22	60.0	0.1
		4	2		3	11.0		117	76.2	0.4
Aiddle-Level		3	5		10	29.4		56.0	02.9	1.9
lanagers		2	6		18	33.3		20.9	90.9	1.0
		1	4		40	43.3		27.2		ATOT
OTAL			17		137	100.0		100.0	89.0	3.3
	hiter	0.001	~	P.Ġ.	0	0.0	n	0.0	0.0	0.0
		4	0		0	0.0		0.0	0.0	0.0
rotessionals	5	3	0		0	0.0		0.0	0.0	0.0
		2	0		0	0.0		0.0	0.0	0.0
		1	0		0	0.0		0.0	0.0	
TOTAL			0		0	0.0		0.0	0.0	0.0
		4			0	0.0		0.0	0.0	0.0
· · · · ·		4	0		0	0.0		0.0	0.0	0.0
Supervisors		2	0		0	0.0		0.0	0.0	0.0
		1	0		0	0.0		0.0	0.0	0.0
TOTAL			0		0	0.0		0.0	0.0	0.0
								0.2	75.0	0.3
		4	4		12	1./		0.5	13.0	75
Clerical		3	17		302	1.5		8.3	05 2	18.9
		2	99		1,979	42.7		54.1	93.2	33.8
		1	112		1,367	48.3		37.4	92.+	55.0
TOTAL		$M_{\rm Pl}$	232		3,660	100.0		100.1	94.0	90.5
			0		0	0.0		0.0	0.0	0.0
0.1		4	0		0	0.0		0.0	0.0	0.0
Other		2	0		0	0.0		0.0	0.0	0.0
		2	0		0	0.0		0.0	0.0	0.0
TOTAL			0		0	0.0		0.0	0.0	0.0
IUIAL			U		0	0.0				
TOTAL E	MPLOYEES		249		3,797	= 4,046				

NATIONAL - Part-Time Employees - Banque Nationale

		1 13 0	Male	Female	Male % of M Category	Female M % of F Category	Female % of Quartile	Female % of Total Employees	4
Upper-Le Managers	vel	4 3 2 1	0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0	0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0	0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0	0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0	0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0	6
TOTAL	0.0	5.0	0	0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	e
Middle-Le Managers	evel	4 3 2 1	0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0	0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0	0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0	0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0	0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0	
TOTAL	3 R	La)	0	0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	
Profession	als	4 3 2 1	0 0 0 0	1 0 0 0	0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0	100.0 0.0 0.0 0.0	100.0 0.0 0.0 0.0	0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0	
TOTAL	6.7	<u>.</u>	0	1	0.0	100.0	100.0	0.0	
Supervisor TOTAL	3	4 3 2 1	0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0	0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0	0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0	0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0	0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0	
Clerical		4 3 2 1	3 14 48 38	67 208 1,224 393	2.9 13.6 46.6 36.9	3.5 11.0 64.7 20.8	95.7 93.7 96.2 91.2	3.3 10.2 59.9 19.2	ł
TOTAL		۲. 	103	1,892	100.0	100.0	94.8	92.7	
Other		4 3 2 1	9 6 1 3	2 4 5 16	47.4 31.6 5.3 15.8	7.4 14.8 18.5 59.3	18.2 40.0 83.3 84.2	0.1 0.2 0.2 0.8	ŕ
TOTAL			19	27	100.1	100.0	58.7	. 1.3	a Je
TOTAL EN	MPLOYEES		122	1,920	= 2,042				

SALARY RANGES BY OCCUPATIONAL QUARTILE

					Male		Female	Calcula	ited
California -		Male	Fei	male	% of M Category		% of F Category	Lowest	Highest
	4	1		0	0.6		0.0		
Upper-Level	3	0		0	0.0		0.0		
Managers	2	5		0	0.6		0.0	1345.1.49	
	1	152		5	96.2		100.0	70,000+	
						115			
	4	3		0	0.1	-	0.0	70,000+	
Middle I evel	3	94		2	2.7		0.1	52,001	70,000
Managers	2	1 574		149	45.3		8.1	35,001	52,500
Ividiageis	1	1 804		1 687	51.9		91.8	17,500	35,000
	0.18	1,004		1,001	6				,
	4	4		0	0.2		0.0	70.000+	
D.C. in Is	4	4		0	0.2		0.0	51,668	70,000
Professionals	2	171		25	10.5		13	33,334	51,667
	2	1 156		1 071	89.0		98.7	15,000	33,333
	18	1,40		1,271	07.0				
		22		44	61		18	37,501	45,000
	4	23		200	20.0		119	30.001	37,500
Supervisors	2	19		1 1 6 5	20.9		46.5	22,501	30,000
	2	140		1,105	30.7		39.8	15.000	22,500
	1	140		777	57.2		57.0	,	
				125	4.6		0.8	32 501	40,000
Ci i i	4	/0		133	4.0		41	25 001	32,500
Clerical	3	299		000	24.2		35.6	17 501	25,000
	2	523		3,038	J4.J		59.5	10 000	17,500
	1	032		9,402	41.3		57.5	10,000	
900 L	· · ·								
	4	26		3	6.6		0.8	70,000+	70.000
Other	3	70		26	17.8		7.3	50,835	10,000
	2	214		156	54.5		43.9	31,668	21 447
	1	83		170	21.1		47.9	12,500	51,007

NATIONAL - Full-Time Employees - CIBC

SALARY RANGES BY OCCUPATIONAL QUARTILE

NATIONAL - Full-Time Employees - Royal Bank

		Male	Female	Male % of M Category	Female % of F Category	Calcul Salary Lowest	lated Ranges Highest	
Upper-Level Managers	4 3 2 1	4 3 31 115	0 0 0 2	2.6 2.0 20.3 75.2	0.0 0.0 0.0 100.0	70,000+		
Middle-Level Managers	4 3 2 1	1 267 2,223 2,553	0 3 270 2,963	0.0 5.3 44.1 50.6	0.0 0.1 8.3 91.6	70,000+ 53,335 36,668 20,000	70,000 53,334 36,667	
Professionals	4 3 2 1	11 35 396 1,318	0 3 114 2,587	0.6 2.0 22.5 74.9	0.0 0.1 4.2 95.7	70,000+ 51,668 33,334 15,000	70,000 51,667 33,333	
Supervisors	4 3 2 1	2 9 18 13	3 151 439 220	4.7 20.9 44.2 30.2	0.4 18.6 54.0 27.1	33,751 27,501 21,251 15,000	40,000 33,750 27,500 21,250	
Clerical	4 3 2 1	9 62 473 790	35 827 8,604 8,997	0.7 4.6 35.5 59.2	0.2 4.5 46.6 48.7	33,126 26,251 19,376 12,500	40,000 33,125 26,250 19,375	
Other	4 3 2 1	20 63 64 25	2 5 39 41	11.6 36.6 37.2 14.5	2.3 5.7 44.8 47.1	48,126 36,251 24,376 12,500	60,000 48,125 36,250 24,375	8

SALARY RANGES BY OCCUPATIONAL QUARTILE

				Male	Female % of F	Calcula Salary F	and the second sec
		Male	Female	Category	Category	Lowest	Highest
Upper-Level Managers	4 3 2 1	1 1 1 118	0 0 0 4	0.8 0.8 0.8 97.5	0.0 0.0 0.0 100.0	70,000+	
Middle-Level Managers	4 3 2 1	12 237 1,454 1,319	1 13 162 1,358	0.4 7.8 48.1 43.6	0.1 0.8 10.6 88.5	70,000+ 52,001 35,001 17,500	70,000 52,500 35,000
Professionals	4 3 2 1	6 54 343 296	0 12 74 173	0.9 7.7 49.1 42.3	0.0 4.6 28.6 66.8	70,000+ 55,001 40,001 25,000	70,000 55,000 40,000
Supervisors	4 3 2 1	3 15 75 129	1 15 477 1,556	1.4 6.8 33.8 58.1	0.0 0.7 23.3 75.9	45,001 35,001 25,001 15,000	55,000 45,000 35,000 25,000
Clerical	4 3 2 1	9 31 133 410	3 70 1,433 7,782	1.5 5.3 22.8 70.3	0.0 0.8 15.4 83.8	40,626 31,251 21,876 12,500	50,000 40,625 31,250 21,875
Other	4 3 2 1	35 101 230 162	2 26 236 366	6.6 19.1 43.6 30.7	0.3 4.1 37.5 58.1	53,126 41,251 29,376 17,500	65,000 53,125 41,250 29,375

NATIONAL - Full-Time Employees - Bank of Nova Scotia

SALARY RANGES BY OCCUPATIONAL QUARTILE

NATIONAL - Full-Time Employees - Bank of Montreal

	A to al	Male	Female	Male % of M Category	Female % of F Category	Calcula Salary I Lowest	ated Ranges Highest	
Upper-Level Managers	4 3 2 1	1 2 7 156	0 0 0 4	0.6 1.2 4.2 94.0	0.0 0.0 0.0 100.0	70,000+		
Middle-Level Managers	4 3 2 1	35 515 1,926 1,151	2 34 442 3,296	1.0 14.2 53.1 31.7	0.1 0.9 11.7 87.3	70,000+ 52,501 35,001 17,500	70,000 52,500 35,000	
Professionals	4 3 2 1	3 2 79 1,620	0 0 12 2,367	0.2 0.1 4.6 95.1	0.0 0.0 0.5 99.5	70,000+ 51,668 33,334 15,000	70,000 51,667 33,333	
Supervisors	4 3 2 1	5 50 40 8	6 108 487 388	4.9 48.5 38.8 7.8	0.6 10.9 49.2 39.2	37,501 30,001 22,501 15,000	45,000 37,500 30,000 22,500	
Clerical	4 3 2 1	1 46 360 291	13 461 4,636 2,256	0.1 6.6 51.6 41.7	0.2 6.3 62.9 30.6	29,376 23,751 18,126 12,500	35,000 29,375 23,750 18,125	
Other	4 3 2 1	31 56 60 74	3 8 24 30	14.0 25.3 27.1 33.5	4.6 12.3 36.9 46.2	70,000+ 50,001 30,001 10,000	70,000 50,000 30,000	

SALARY RANGES BY OCCUPATIONAL QUARTILE

NATIONAL - Full-Time Employees - Toronto Dominion Bank

	. Autor		Male	Female % of F	Calcula Salary R	ted
	М	ale Female	e Category	Category	Lowest	Highest
Jpper-Level Managers	4 3 2 1 2	5 12 40 73	0 1.5 0 3.6 0 12.1 9 82.7	0.0 0.0 0.0 100.0	70,000+	211
Middle-Level Managers	4 3 3 6 2 1,1 1 7	72 2 82 12 22 7(40 9)	22 12.7 21 23.4 05 38.5 72 25.4	1.2 6.6 38.7 53.4	58,751 47,501 36,251 25,000	70,000 58,750 47,500 36,250
Professionals	4 3 2 1	11 49 09 8	1 6.2 13 27.7 44 61.6 10 4.5	1.5 19.1 64.7 14.7	70,000+ 55,835 41,668 27,500	70,000 55,834 41,667
Supervisors	4 3 2 1	0 25 1 87 6 27 1	23 0.0 97 18.0 523 62.6 40 19.4	2.3 20.0 63.4 14.2	34,376 28,751 23,126 17,500	40,000 34,375 28,750 23,125
Clerical	4 3 2 1	5 102 4 561 4,5 447 5,7	51 0.4 484 9.1 565 50.3 142 40.1	0.5 4.7 44.6 50.2	33,126 26,251 19,376 12,500	40,000 33,125 26,250 19,375
Other	4 3 2 1	2 8 27 5	1 4.8 7 19.0 30 64.3 33 11.9	1.4 9.9 42.3 46.5	57,501 45,001 32,501 20,000	70,000 57,500 45,000 32,500

SALARY RANGES BY OCCUPATIONAL QUARTILE

NATIONAL - Full-Time Employees - Banque Nationale

fractional and a second			in an	Male % of M	Female % of F	Calculat Salary R	ed anges	
Upper-Level Managers	4 3 2 1	Male 2 0 2 42	Female 0 0 0 1	Category 4.3 0.0 4.3 91.3	Category 0.0 0.0 0.0 100.0	Lowest 70,000+	Highest	3 . 7
Middle-Level Managers	4 3 2 1	1 4 255 1,259	1 0 12 506	0.1 0.3 16.8 82.9	0.2 0.0 2.3 97.5	70,000+ 54,167 38,334 22,500	70,000 54,166 38,333	
Professionals	4 3 2 1	1 5 55 579	0 1 12 603	0.2 0.8 8.6 90.5	0.0 0.2 1.9 97.9	70,000+ 52,001 35,001 17,500	70,000 52,500 35,000	
Supervisors	4 3 2 1	1 14 14 4	3 25 56 24	3.0 42.4 42.4 12.1	2.8 23.1 51.9 22.2	35,001 30,001 25,001 20,000	40,000 35,000 30,000 25,000	
Clerical	4 3 2 1	0 14 97 133	3 106 1,998 3,895	0 5.7 39.8 54.5	0.1 1.8 33.3 64.9	33,126 26,251 19,376 12,500	40,000 33,125 26,250 19,375	
Other	4 3 2 1	19 32 70 113	0 1 53 404	8.1 13.7 29.9 48.3	0.0 0.2 11.6 88.2	46,251 37,501 28,751 20,000	55,000 46,250 37,500 28,750	

APPENDIX C

NATIONAL FULL AND PART TIME EMPLOYEES BY BANK, SALARY CATEGORY, AND SEX

APPENDIX C

NATIONAL FULL AND PART TIME EMPLOYEES BY BANK, SALARY CATEGORY, AND SEX

Table C-1.1 National - Full Time Employees - CIBC

Table C 1.2	National - Full Time Employees - Royal Bank of Canada
Table C-1.3	National - Full Time Employees - Bank of Nova Scotia
Table C-1.4	National - Full Time Employees - Bank of Montreal
Table C-1.5	National - Full Time Employees - Toronto Dominon Bank
Table C-1.6	National - Full Time Employees - Banque Nationale

Table C-2.1 National - Part Time Employees - CIBC
Table C-2.2 National - Part Time Employees - Royal Bank of Canada
Table C-2.3 National - Part Time Employees - Bank of Nova Scotia
Table C-2.4 National - Part Time Employees - Bank of Montreal
Table C-2.5 National - Part Time Employees - Toronto Dominon Bank
Table C-2.6 National - Part Time Employees - Banque Nationale

APPENDIX C

EXPLANATION OF CALCULATIONS

- Male Total number of full time (part time) male employees in the bank on a national basis in each salary category. Example: CIBC <\$15,000 category 42 males earn less than \$15,000.
- Female Total number of full time (part time) female employees in the bank on a national basis in each salary category. Example: CIBC <\$15,000 category 757 females earn less than \$15,000.
- Male % of M Category Percentage of full time (part time) male employees in each salary category. The (number of full time (part time) male employees in a salary category/total number of full time (part time) male employees) x 100. Example: CIBC <\$15,000 category (42/7,564) x 100 = 0.6% of males earn less than \$15,000.
- Female % of F Category Percentage of full time (part time) female employees in each salary category. The (number of full time (part time) female employees in a salary category/total number of full time (part time) female employees) x 100. Example: CIBC <\$15,000 category (757/22,616) x 100 = 3.3% of females earn less than \$15,000.</p>
- Female % of Total Employees Female female labour force as a percentage of the total labour force found in each salary category. The (number of full time (part time) females in each salary category/total number of full time (part time) employees) x 100. Example: CIBC - <\$15,000 category - (757/30,180) x 100 = 2.5% - females earning less than \$15,000 represent 2.5% of all employees.

Total Employees - The total number of full time (part time) females by sex.

NATIONAL - Full-Time Employees - CIBC

	Male	Female	Male % of M Category	Female % of F Category	Female % of Total Employees
< 15,000	42	757	0.6	3.3	2.5
15,000 - 17,499	484	5,734	6.4	25.4	19.0
17,500 - 19,999	490	6,077	6.5	26.9	20.1
20,000 - 22,499	391	3,822	5.2	16.9	12.7
22,500 - 24,999	307	1,661	4.1	7.3	5.5
25,000 - 27,499	444	1,365	5.9	6.0	4.5
27,500 - 29,999	454	972	6.0	4.3	3.2
30,000 - 34,999	887	1,191	11.7	5.3	3.9
35,000 - 39,999	963	559	12.7	2.5	1.9
40,000 - 49,999	1,484	346	19.6	1.5	1.1
50,000 - 69,999	1,288	116	17.0	0.5	0.0
> 70,000	330	16	4.4	0.1	0.0
TOTAL	7,564	22,616	100.1	100.0	

NATIONAL - Full-Tin	me Employees	s - Royal Bank			1.1.1.1
	Male	Female	Male % of M Category	Female % of F Category	Female % of Total Employees
< 15,000	59	461	0.7	1.8	5.4
15,000 - 17,499	524	5,244	6.2	20.7	15.5
17,500 - 19,999	450	6,842	5.3	27.0	20.2
20,000 - 22,499	412	4,297	4.8	17.0	12.7
22,500 - 24,999	450	2,435	5.3	9.6	7.2
25,000 - 27,499	440	1,773	5.2	7.0	5.2
27,500 - 29,999	377	1,256	4.4	5.0	3.7
30,000 - 34,999	932	1,535	11.0	6.1	4.5
35,000 - 39,999	1,080	815	12.7	3.2	2.4
40,000 - 49,999	1,978	522	23.3	2.1	1.5
50,000 - 69,999	1,511	118	17.8	0.5	0.6
> 70,000	292	7	3.4	0.0	0.0
TOTAL	8,505	25,305	100.1	100.0	

NATIONAL - Full-Time Employees - Bank of Nova Scotia

			Male	Female	Female %
	Male	Female	% of M	% of F	of Total Employees
		2 Officio	Catogory	catogory	Linployees
< 15,000	23	290	0.4 2.1	1.5	
15,000 - 17,499	144	2,643	2.8	19.2	14.0
17,500 - 19,999	186	3,734	3.6	27.1	19.7
20,000 - 22,499	167	2,521	3.2	18.3	13.3
22,500 - 24,999	236	1,451	4.6	10.5	7.7
25,000 - 27,499	257	1,018	5.0	7.4	5.4
27,500 - 29,999	255	656	4.9	4.8	3.5
30,000 - 34,999	611	725	11.8	5.3	3.8
35,000 - 39,999	733	368	14.2	2.7	1.9
40,000 - 49,999	1,282	252	24.8	1.8	1.3
50,000 - 69,999	999	97	19.3	0.7	0.5
> 70,000	282	9	5.4	0.1	0.0
TOTAL	5,175	13,764	100.0	100.0	

NATIONAL - Full-Time Employees - Bank of Montreal

	Male	Female	Male % of M Category	Female % of F Category	Female % of Total Employees
< 15,000	43	168	0.7	1.2	0.8
15,000 - 17,499	193	1,421	3.0	9.7	6.7
17,500 - 19,999	283	3,253	4.3	22.3	15.4
20,000 - 22,499	281	2,930	4.3	20.1	13.9
22,500 - 24,999	357	2,259	5.5	15.5	10.7
25,000 - 27,499	365	1,543	5.6	10.6	7.3
27,500 - 29,999	354	955	5.4	0.6	4.5
30,000 - 34,999	820	1,026	12.6	7.0	4.9
35,000 - 39,999	782	470	12.0	3.2	2.2
40,000 - 49,999	1,439	397	22.1	2.7	1.9
50,000 - 69,999	1,227	140	18.8	1.0	0.7
> 70,000	375	15	5.8	0.1	0.1
TOTAL	6,519	14,577	100.1	100.0	

NATIONAL - Full-Time Employees - Toronto Dominion Bank

	Mala	Female	Male % of M	Female % of F	Female % of Total
	Iviale	Female	Category	Category	Employees
< 15,000	42	305	0.9	2.3	1.7
15,000 - 17,499	223	2,195	4.7	16.6	12.3
17,500 - 19,999	195	2,887	4.1	21.9	16.1
20,000 - 22,499	306	2,773	6.5	21.0	15.5
22,500 - 24,999	229	1,565	4.9	11.9	8.7
25,000 - 27,499	184	902	3.9	6.8	5.0
27,500 - 29,999	156	500	3.3	3.8	2.8
30,000 - 34,999	433	843	9.2	6.4	4.7
35,000 - 39,999	602	599	12.7	4.5	3.4
40,000 - 49,999	1,025	491	21.7	3.7	2.7
50,000 - 69,999	990	123	21.0	0.9	0.7
> 70,000	334	10	7.1	0.1	0.1
TOTAL	4,719	13,193	100.1	99.9	

NATIONAL - Full-Tim	e Employees	- Banque Nat	ionale		
	Male	Female	Male % of M Category	Female % of F Category	Female % of Total Employees
< 15,000	13	376	0.5	4.9	3.6
15,000 - 17,499	94	2,544	3.5	33.3	24.4
17,500 - 19,999	95	1,849	3.5	24.0	17.7
20,000 - 22,499	103	843	3.8	10.9	8.1
22,500 - 24,999	161	789	5.9	10.2	7.6
25,000 - 27,499	150	474	5.5	6.2	4.5
27,500 - 29,999	185	283	6.8	3.7	2.7
30,000 - 34,999	422	315	15.5	4.1	3.0
35,000 - 39,999	395	134	14.5	1.7	1.3
40,000 - 49,999	637	71	23.5	0.9	0.7
50,000 - 69,999	351	21	12.9	0.3	0.2
> 70,000	110	5	4.1	0.1	0.0
TOTAL	2,716	7,704	100.0	100.3	

NATIONAL - Part-Time Employees - C.I.B.C.

Register a Marian la la			Male % of M	Female % of F	Female % of Total
want in the stand	Male	Female	Category	Category	Employees
< 2,500	17	116	4.7	2.0	1.9
2,500 - 4,999	42	356	11.6	6.2	5.8
5,000 - 7,499	91	857	25.1	14.9	14.0
7,500 - 9,999	114	1,874	31.4	32.5	30.6
10,000 - 12,499	43	1,627	11.8	28.2	26.5
12,500 - 14,999	28	732	7.7	12.7	11.9
15,000 - 17,499	27	152	7.4	2.6	2.5
17,500 - 19,999	1	36	0.3	0.6	0.6
20,000 - 24,999	0	13	0.0	0.2	0.2
25,000 - 29,999	0	2	0.0	0.0	0.0
> 30,000	0	1	0.0	0.0	0.0
TOTAL	363	5,766	100.0	99.9	

NATIONAL - Part-Tim	e Employees	- Royal Bank	c of Canada		
Annay Constant Storage Constant Canadary Fapping	Male	Female	Male % of M Category	Female % of F Category	Female % of Total Employees
< 2,500	27	287	15.7	7.2	6.9
2,500 - 4,999	38	729	22.1	18.2	17.5
5,000 - 7,499	35	913	20.3	22.8	21.9
7,500 - 9,999	45	1,226	26.2	30.6	29.4
10,000 - 12,499	16	575	9.3	14.4	13.8
12,500 - 14,999	8	184	4.7	4.6	4.4
15,000 - 17,499	2	59	1.2	1.5	1.4
17,500 - 19,999	1 .	13	0.6	0.3	0.3
20,000 - 24,999	0	16	0.0	0.4	0.4
25,000 - 29,999	0	0	0.0	0.0	0.0
> 30,000	0	2	0.0	0.1	0.0
TOTAL	172	4,004	100.1	100.1	

TABLE C-2.2

.

	Male	Female	Male % of M Category	Female % of F Category	Female % of Total Employees
< 2,500	0	0	0.0	0.0	0.0 2.500
2,500 - 4,999	0	0	0.0	0.0	0.0
5,000 - 7,499	0	0	0.0	0.0	0.0
7,500 - 9,999	0	0	0.0	0.0	0.0
10,000 - 12,499	0	0	0.0	0.0	0.0
12,500 - 14,999	49	538	22.6	12.8	- 0012.2
15,000 - 17,499	143	1,889	65.9	45.0	42.8
17,500 - 19,999	16 -	1,316	7.4	31.3	29.8
20,000 - 24,999	6	435	2.8	10.4	9.8
25,000 - 29,999	3	11	1.4	0.3	0.2
> 30,000	0	11	0.0	0.3	0.2
TOTAL	217	4,200	100.1	100.1	

TABLE C-2.3

NATIONAL - Part-Time Employees - Bank of Nova Scotia

NATIONAL - Part-Tim	e Employees	s - Bank of Mo	ontreal		
Alerand	Male	Female	Male % of M Category	Female % of F Category	Female % of Total Employees
< 2,500	20	128,	5.4	2.3	2.1
2,500 - 4,999	53	358	14.4	6.4	6.0
5,000 - 7,499	50	603	13.6	10.7	10.1
7,500 - 9,999	61	1,152	16.5	20.5	19.2
10,000 - 12,499	62	1,368	16.8	24.3	22.8
12,500 - 14,999	69	1,186	18.7	21.1	19.8
15,000 - 17,499	39	620	10.6	11.0	10.3
17,500 - 19,999	6	160	1.6	2.8	2.7
20,000 - 24,999	7	40	1.9	0.7	0.7
25,000 - 29,999	2	8	0.5	0.1	0.1
> 30,000	0	1	0.0	0.0	0.0
TOTAL	369	5,624	100.0	99.9	

. *

TABLE C-2.4

TABLE C-2.5

	NATIONAL -	Part-Time	Employees	- Toronto	Dominion	Bank	

Male $\% of MCategoryFemale\% of MCategoryFemale\% of MCategoryFemaleof TCategory< 2,5004761.62.01.92,500 - 4,9993840815.310.710.15,000 - 7,4995973323.719.318.17,500 - 9,9995488921.723.422.010,000 - 12,4993982815.721.820.112,500 - 14,999245069.613.312.115,000 - 17,499112104.45.55.117,500 - 19,9994761.62.01.120,000 - 24,9999463.61.21.125,000 - 29,9993161.20.40.1> 30,000491.60.20.1$						
< 2,500 - 4,999 38 408 15.3 10.7 10.3 5,000 - 7,499 59 733 23.7 19.3 18.3 7,500 - 9,999 54 889 21.7 23.4 22.4 10,000 - 12,499 39 828 15.7 21.8 20.3 12,500 - 14,999 24 506 9.6 13.3 12.3 15,000 - 17,499 11 210 4.4 5.5 5.3 17,500 - 19,999 4 76 1.6 2.0 1.3 20,000 - 24,999 9 46 3.6 1.2 1.2 2,000 - 24,999 9 46 3.6 1.2 1.2 1.2 5,000 - 29,999 3 16 1.2 0.4 0.3 25,000 4 9 1.6 0.2 0.3 1000 1000 1000 1000 1000 1000 1000	2 III A CARACTERIA Martine A Rollino - A Martine A Rollino - A	Male	Female	Male % of M Category	Female % of F Category	Female % of Total Employees
2,500 - 4,999 38 408 15.3 10.7 10.3 $5,000 - 7,499$ 59 733 23.7 19.3 18.3 $7,500 - 9,999$ 54 889 21.7 23.4 22.0 $10,000 - 12,499$ 39 828 15.7 21.8 20.3 $12,500 - 14,999$ 24 506 9.6 13.3 12.3 $15,000 - 17,499$ 11 210 4.4 5.5 5.3 $17,500 - 19,999$ 4 76 1.6 2.0 1.3 $20,000 - 24,999$ 9 46 3.6 1.2 1.6 $25,000 - 29,999$ 3 16 1.2 0.4 0.2 $> 30,000$ 4 9 1.6 0.2 0.8	< 2,500	4	76	1.6	2.0	1.9
5,000 - 7,499 59 733 23.7 19.3 18.7 $7,500 - 9,999$ 54 889 21.7 23.4 22.0 $10,000 - 12,499$ 39 828 15.7 21.8 20.7 $12,500 - 14,999$ 24 506 9.6 13.3 12.7 $15,000 - 17,499$ 11 210 4.4 5.5 5.7 $17,500 - 19,999$ 4 76 1.6 2.0 1.7 $20,000 - 24,999$ 9 46 3.6 1.2 1.7 $25,000 - 29,999$ 3 16 1.2 0.4 0.7 $> 30,000$ 4 9 1.6 0.2 0.7	2,500 - 4,999	38	408	15.3	10.7	10.1
7,500 - 9,99954889 21.7 23.4 22.0 $10,000 - 12,499$ 39828 15.7 21.8 20.5 $12,500 - 14,999$ 245069.6 13.3 12.5 $15,000 - 17,499$ 11 210 4.4 5.5 5.5 $17,500 - 19,999$ 476 1.6 2.0 1.5 $20,000 - 24,999$ 946 3.6 1.2 1.6 $25,000 - 29,999$ 3 16 1.2 0.4 0.5 $> 30,000$ 49 1.6 0.2 0.8	5,000 - 7,499	59	733	23.7	19.3	18.1
10,000 - 12,499 39 828 15.7 21.8 20.3 $12,500 - 14,999$ 24 506 9.6 13.3 12.3 $15,000 - 17,499$ 11 210 4.4 5.5 5.3 $17,500 - 19,999$ 4 76 1.6 2.0 1.3 $20,000 - 24,999$ 9 46 3.6 1.2 1.6 $25,000 - 29,999$ 3 16 1.2 0.4 0.2 $> 30,000$ 4 9 1.6 0.2 0.3	7,500 - 9,999	54	889	21.7	23.4	22.0
12,500 - 14,999 24 506 9.6 13.3 12.3 $15,000 - 17,499$ 11 210 4.4 5.5 5.3 $17,500 - 19,999$ 4 76 1.6 2.0 1.3 $20,000 - 24,999$ 9 46 3.6 1.2 1.6 $25,000 - 29,999$ 3 16 1.2 0.4 0.2 $> 30,000$ 4 9 1.6 0.2 0.8	10,000 - 12,499	39	828	15.7	21.8	20.5
15,000 - 17,499 11 210 4.4 5.5 5.7 $17,500 - 19,999$ 4 76 1.6 2.0 1.7 $20,000 - 24,999$ 9 46 3.6 1.2 1.7 $25,000 - 29,999$ 3 16 1.2 0.4 0.7 $> 30,000$ 4 9 1.6 0.2 0.8	12,500 - 14,999	24	506	9.6	13.3	12.5
17,500 - 19,9994761.62.01.7 $20,000 - 24,999$ 9463.61.21. $25,000 - 29,999$ 3161.20.40.> 30,000491.60.20.	15,000 - 17,499	11	210	4.4	5.5	5.2
20,000 - 24,999 9 46 3.6 1.2 1. 25,000 - 29,999 3 16 1.2 0.4 0. > 30,000 4 9 1.6 0.2 0.	17,500 - 19,999	4 -	76	1.6	2.0	1.9
25,000 - 29,999 3 16 1.2 0.4 0. > 30,000 4 9 1.6 0.2 0.	20,000 - 24,999	9	46	3.6	1.2	1.1
> 30,000 4 9 1.6 0.2 0.	25,000 - 29,999	3	16	1.2	0.4	0.4
	> 30,000	4	9	1.6	0.2	0.2
101AL 249 3,797 100.0 99.8	TOTAL	249	3,797	100.0	99.8	

NATIONAL - Par	t-Time	Employee	s - Banque Nat	ionale			
		Male	Female	Male % of M Category	Female % of F Category	Female % of Total Employees	
< 2,500	1	0	0.8	0.0	0.0		
2,500 - 4,999		9	78	7.4	4.1	3.8	
5,000 - 7,499		30	424	24.6	22.1	20.8	
7,500 - 9,999		34	686	27.9	35.7	33.6	
10,000 - 12,499		33	540	27.0	28.1	26.4	
12,500 - 14,999		11	103	9.0	5.4	5.0	
15,000 - 17,499		3	70	2.5	3.6	3.4	
17,500 - 19,999		1	17	0.8	0.9	0.8	
20,000 - 24,999		0	2	0.0	0.1	0.1	
25,000 - 29,999		0	0	0.0	0.0	0.0	
> 30,000		0	0	0.0	0.0	0.0	
TOTAL		122	1,920	100.0	100.0		

TABLE C-2.6

APPENDIX D

HIRINGS, TERMINATIONS AND NET EFFECT

EXPLANATION OF CALCULATIONS

APPENDIX D

- EXPLANATION OF CALCULATIONS

HIRINGS, TERMINATIONS AND NET EFFECT

- Total Total number of male and females full time (part time) employees hired/terminated by banking industry as a whole and then by each of the banks studied. Hired means those employees who were taken on strength during the reporting period. Terminated means any employee who has retired, resigned or been dismissed during a reporting period, not including temporary layoff. Example: CIBC - hired 1,909 employees during the reporting period.
- Men Total number of male full time (part time) employees hired/terminated by banking industry as a whole and then by each of the banks studied. Example: CIBC hired 715 men during the reporting period.
- Women Total number of female full time (part time) employees hired/terminated by banking industry as a whole and then by each of the banks studied. Example: CIBC hired 1,194 women during the reporting period.
- W. % of Total Female full time (part time) employees as a percentage of the total full time (part time) employees. The (total number of full time (part time) women hired/total number of male and female employees hired) x 100. Example: CIBC -1,194/(1,194 + 715) = 62.5%.
- NET EFFECT = the total number of employees/total male employees/total female employees hired minus the total number of employees/total male employees/total female employees terminated for both full and part time employees.

APPENDIX E

PROMOTIONS IN FULL AND PART TIME EMPLOYMENT EXPLANATION OF CALCULATIONS

APPENDIX E

. EXPLANATION OF CALCULATIONS

PROMOTIONS IN FULL TIME AND PART TIME EMPLOYMENT

- # of Promotions The number of promotions that occurred in each bank are recorded by employment status and by gender. Number of promotions is defined as any employee who has permanently moved during a reporting period from one position to another and now has a higher salary or salary range than that of the previous position and a higher ranking in the business hierarchy. The number of promotions indicates the total number of transactions rather than just the total number of people who were promoted.
- % of Total Percentage of employees in bank that have been promoted by sex, i.e. the number in the category divided by total number of employees in category. Example: CIBC - 7,852/30,180 x 100 - 26.0% of the employees at the CIBC received promotions.
- W. % of Total women as a percentage of total employees to receive promotions, i.e. the total number of women divided by the total number of employees. Example: CIBC 5,083/7,852 x 100 = 64.7%.

APPENDIX F

SALARY RANGE CALCULATIONS

APPENDIX F SALARY RANGE CALCULATIONS

According to the Employment Equity Regulations, each employer is to first list the employees within each occupation group by salary from highest to lowest. For each occupational group the lowest salary is subtracted from the highest. This difference is divided by four to obtain the width of each quartile. For example, if there are four employees earning 10,000, 19,000, 23,000 and 30,000 the difference would be: (30,000 - 10,000)/4 = 55,000. The bottom of quartile one is the lowest salary and the top of quartile one is found by adding the width of the quartile to the lowest salary. In the above example this would be 10,000 and 15,000 (10,000 + 55,000). The top and bottom of quartile 2, 3 and 4 would be found by adding 1 to the top of the preceding quartile to determine the bottom of the next quartile and the top of the next quarter is found by adding the width of the quartile and the top of the next quarter is found by adding the width of the quartile and the top of the next quarter is found by adding the width of the quartile and the top of the next quarter is found by adding the width of the quartile and the top of the next quarter is found by adding the width of the quartile to the preceding quartile. In our example it would be:

4	\$25,001 - \$30,000
3	\$20,001 - \$25,000
2	\$15;001 - \$20,000
1	\$10,000 - \$15,000

The employees are grouped into the quartile according to their salary and the total number within each quartile is reported.

The top and the bottom of the salary range for each occupational group are then calculated. The highest and the lowest salary are identified. Schedule V, Table of Salary Sections which is provided by the government and duplicated below. This schedule determines which salary section includes the highest salary and which includes the lowest section. The salary range for each occupational group is reported by using the appropriate salary sections. In our example it would be \$10,000 - \$12,499 for the lowest and \$30,000 - \$34,999 for the highest. This categorization only provides the salary categories that the lowest and highest salaries fall within. It does not provide numbers or percentages of male, female or total employees within each specific salary category. However, the form does provide exact number of employees by guartiles and the range of salaries the occupation covers.

	5	SCHEDU	ULE V	
ant the solid or at the	Table	of Sala	ry Sections	
iowest rites			ning manihur -	ini menjanan arta arta
a an an and a start and a	\$70,000 an	d over	a indentification	
if the liter	\$65,000	(-36)	\$69,999	the a with the third is
A LINE STREET OF	\$60,000	O PART	\$64,999	
i	\$55,000	020	\$59,999	
1 1. 10 20 20 1 al al	\$50,000	111. <u>-</u> 0	\$54,999	ton of mirrie and is f
(44) + \$3,000, The ice and	\$45,000	m 1000	\$49,999	the signals should she
	\$35,000	te Tour	\$39,999	
	\$30,000	14 - 146	\$34,999	
	\$27,500	o Jinin	\$29,999	
	\$25,000	-	\$27,499	
	\$22,500	-	\$24,999	
	\$20,000	- 100.8	\$22,499	
	\$17,500		\$19,999	
	\$15,000		\$17,499	
	\$12,500	- - 100)(\$14,999	
	\$10,000	-	\$12,499	
a lo then calify and the notal	\$ 7,500	1 30 a	\$ 9,999	
	\$ 5,000	-	\$ 7,499	
	\$ 2,500	-	\$ 4,999	

\$ 0 - \$ 2,499

\$ 2,499